Public Document Pack

QSwaIe

BOROUGH COUNCIL

AGENDA
SWALE JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD MEETING

Date: Monday, 7 March 2016
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: Council Chamber, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT

Membership:

Swale Borough Councillors Bryan Mulhern, Prescott, Ken Pugh, Ghlin Whelan,
Mike Whiting (Chairman), Cameron Beart and June Garrad.

Kent County Councillors Mike Baldock, Bowles, Lee Burgess, Adrian Crowther, Tom Gates
(Vice-Chairman), Harrison and Roger Truelove.

Parish Council Members:

Kent Association of Local Council’s representatives: Dave Austin (Sheldwich, Badlesmere
and Leaveland Parish Council), Peter Macdonald (Minster Parish Council) and Richard
Palmer (Newington Parish Council).

Quorum = 5 (2 from each Council and 1 Parish representative).

RECORDING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be recorded.

At the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being
audio recorded. The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are
confidential or exempt items.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act.
Data collected during this recording will be retained in accordance with the Council’s data

retention policy.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and speaking at Committee you are consenting to being
recorded and to the possible use of those sound recordings for training purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this please contact Democratic Services.

Pages
1. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

The Chairman will advise the meeting of the evacuation procedures to
follow in the event of an emergency.



Apologies for absence and confirmation of substitutes
Minutes

To approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on 7 December 2015 (Minute
Nos. 373 - 385) as a correct record, subject to an amendment on the top
of page 411, to read ‘double yellow lines’, rather than ‘double yellow
lanes’.

Cabinet on 3 February 2016 resolved:

That the report ‘Parking in Swale’ — Minute No. 376 be considered further
at the next Swale Joint Transportation Board on 7 March 2016. This is
reported at item 6 on the agenda ‘Verge and Footway Parking in Swale’.

Declarations of Interest

Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or
other material benefits for themselves or their spouse, civil partner or
person with whom they are living with as a spouse or civil partner. They
must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.

The Chairman will ask Members if they have any interests to declare in
respect of items on this agenda, under the following headings:

(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act
2011. The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be
declared. After declaring a DPI, the Member must leave the meeting and
not take part in the discussion or vote. This applies even if there is
provision for public speaking.

(b) Disclosable Non Pecuniary (DNPI) under the Code of Conduct
adopted by the Council in May 2012. The nature as well as the existence
of any such interest must be declared. After declaring a DNPI interest,
the Member may stay, speak and vote on the matter.

Advice to Members: If any Councillor has any doubt about the
existence or nature of any DPI or DNPI which he/she may have in any
item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Director of
Corporate Services as Monitoring Officer, the Head of Legal or from other
Solicitors in Legal Services as early as possible, and in advance of the
Meeting.

Public Session

Members of the public have the opportunity to speak at this meeting.
Anyone wishing to present a petition or speak on this item is required to
register with the Democratic Services Section by noon on Friday 4 March
2016. Questions that have not been submitted by this deadline will not be
accepted. Only two people will be allowed to speak on each item and
each person is limited to asking two questions. Each speaker will have a
maximum of three minutes to speak.



Petitions, questions and statements will only be accepted if they are in
relation to an item being considered at this meeting.

A representative from ‘20’s Plenty’ is presenting to request that a working
group is set-up to examine how 20mph could be implemented throughout
all residential streets in Faversham.

Part One - Reports for recommendation to Swale Borough Council's

Cabinet

6. Verge and Footway Parking in Swale

7. Formal Objections - Traffic Regulation Order for Proposed Sittingbourne
Market Re-location

8. Formal Objections - Traffic Regulation Order Amendment 17 (Grayshott
Close, Sittingbourne and Church Road, Eastchurch)

9. Fairview Road Area, Sittingbourne - Parking Review

10. Information Consultations on Proposed Waiting Restrictions

This report provides a summary of informal consultation results with
residents and statutory consultees on proposals to install waiting
restrictions in Wildish Road, Faversham and The Street/Canterbury Road
in Boughton-under-Blean and Dunkirk.

Part Two - Report for recommendation to Kent County Council's Cabinet

11.

A2/A251, Faversham - Junction Improvement Update

To receive a presentation on the junction improvements.

Part Three - Information Items

12.

13.

14.

15.

Lower Road, Isle of Sheppey, petition
Swale Highway Works Programme
Progress Update Report

To note progress made following recommendations and agreed action at
previous meetings.

Department for Transport response to the closure of the A249

25 -52

53-70

71-112

113 -
114
115 -
128
129 -
134

135 -
138



Issued on Monday, 22 February 2016

The reports included in Part | of this agenda can be made available in
alternative formats. For further information about this service, or to arrange

for special faciliies to be provided at the meeting, please contact
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find out more about the
work of the Swale JTB, please visit www.swale.gov.uk

Corporate Services Director, Swale Borough Council,
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT



Agenda Iltem 6

SWALE JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD

Meeting Date Monday 7" March 2016

Report Title Verge and Footway Parking in Swale
Cabinet Member Clir David Simmons

SMT Lead Dave Thomas

Head of Service Dave Thomas

Lead Officer Mike Knowles (SBC)
Classification Open

Recommendations | Members are asked to re-consider their

recommendation of December 2015, as per the
Cabinet decision, in light of the additional information
provided by Officers.

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

Purpose of Report and Executive Summary

Having considered and discussed the December 2015 report, Members of the JTB
resolved to recommend that “the byelaw restricting parking on grass verges be
extended to include parking on footways”.

At the Cabinet Meeting on 3 February 2016 following the December 2015 JTB, it
was resolved that in view of the significant implications of changing the current
byelaw to include footway parking, the matter should be referred back to the JTB for
further consideration.

Background

As the initial report to the JTB had not considered the potential recommendation,
this report presents all options and relative implications.

The report to the JTB presented the current situation regarding inconsiderate
parking on footways, emphasising that the police and the highway authority already
have powers to deal with any vehicles parking in a manner to obstruct free passage
along a highway. It was noted however that this is not generally regarded as a
priority function by the delegated authorities.

The report also clarified what actions the Council may currently take where parking

restrictions exist, including yellow lines adjacent to where vehicles are parking on
grassed verges.

Page 1



24

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Members of the JTB made a proposal that Swale’s current byelaw covering parking
on grassed verges be extended to include footway parking. Despite concerns raised
by some Members, the proposal was passed by 8 votes to 6.

Issue for Decision

There are significant concerns around the implications of this proposal should it be
adopted:

Impact on Residents

A revision to the current byelaw will have a significant impact on residents in many
areas of the Borough. With limited carriageway widths and high demand for parking
on-street due to a lack of off-street parking facilities, in many roads residents are
forced to park their vehicles on footways.

A borough-wide ban on footway parking will severely impact on these residents,
where in most cases parking in adjoining streets is not an option as they are already
saturated with parked vehicles.

The result will inevitably be an increase in the number of driveway entrances and
pedestrian crossing points becoming obstructed, and inappropriate parking on
junctions, as drivers struggle to find available parking spaces.

Where residents are forced to park vehicles on the carriageway as a result of a
change to the byelaw, problems around traffic movement could increase, which may
leave authorities no option but to install double yellow lines along one side of the
road. This will exacerbate the issues for residents as on-street parking capacity will
be significantly reduced, with local authorities unable to offer alternative parking
arrangements.

Enforcement

The revised byelaw would need to be allocated appropriate additional resources for
investigation and enforcement purposes. This resource allocation may be significant
when considering the level of expectation of the public in terms of enforcing the
revised byelaw.

The current byelaw is inefficient in terms of enforcement, and is only used where
persistent offenders have damaged grassed verges by frequent parking. To use the
byelaw, a case file needs to be produced for each offender and therefore it is not a
simple case of issuing an enforcement notice. The matter will then be heard in a
Magistrates Court.

As a result, enforcement of the byelaw is a slow and potentially expensive
procedure, and one where additional legal resources may also be required should

Page 2



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

the byelaw be amended to include footway parking, as previously recommended by
the JTB.

Consistency

If the byelaw is amended to include footway parking, this would result in a Borough-
wide prohibition of parking on all footways. There are many areas in the Borough
where vehicles are being parked on footways because parking on the carriageway
would cause an obstruction to the safe passage of other vehicles. In these areas it
may be considered acceptable to park on the footway, particularly where footways
are wide enough to accommodate the vehicles whilst maintaining adequate width for
the safe passage of pedestrians.

A Borough-wide prohibition of parking on all footways will result in a significant
demand on resources resulting in some areas with limited patrols. Leaving such
areas unenforced may result in reputational damage and complaints of
inconsistency, particularly if vigorous enforcement is carried out in other areas.
There could also be issues where the Police would prefer to see vehicles parked on
footways to prevent carriageway obstruction, or to serve as traffic calming
measures.

Practicality

As detailed in 3.9, the amendment to the byelaw would impact on all footways in the
Borough, irrespective of the circumstances.

It should be considered that verges and footways remain the responsibility of Kent
County Council and therefore an alternative method to deter verge parking and
footway obstruction should be sought in the first instance with the Highways Team.

Individual Traffic Regulation Orders may be introduced for “hot spots” which in
themselves would be very resource intensive to administer and enforce. There are
also costs associated with the preparation of the Traffic Regulation Order and
required on-street signing and posts. Such Traffic Regulation Orders have been
implemented in other districts, however evidence suggests that this displaces the
problem into other roads and onto the carriageway resulting in reduced traffic flow
and associated highway safety concerns.

Isolated areas of parking restrictions therefore require careful consideration, as the
issue of displacement and more compacted parked vehicles into adjoining roads can
produce more of a problem than the original issue that the restrictions were
introduced to alleviate.

In many cases where isolated parking restrictions are proposed, residents in

adjoining roads formally object to the Traffic Regulation Order on the grounds that
the parking issues will merely be displaced into their streets.

Page 3



3.16

3.17

5.1

5.2

Current legislation

As the Police and Highway Authority already have the power to act where vehicles
are considered to be causing an obstruction using powers granted to them under the
Highways Act 1980, the question needs to be asked as to whether any change to
the existing byelaw, or introduction of specific Traffic Regulation Orders, is
necessary to tackle the issue of footway parking.

Such an amendment would effectively transfer the responsibility for enforcement
from the Police and Highway Authority to the District Council. This may cause

confusion for residents where enforcement action has been requested to tackle
footway parking.

Recommendation

Members are asked to re-consider their recommendation of December 2015, as per
the Cabinet decision, in light of the additional information provided by Officers.

Consultation

Since the December JTB meeting, consultation has taken place with the
Environment Response Team to establish the potential impact on the team’s
resources should the proposed change to the byelaw be implemented.

Engagement should take place with local residents where such an amendment may
have significant impact upon their everyday lives.

Page 4



6. Implications

Issue

Implications

Corporate Plan

A Borough to be Proud Of.

Financial, Significant (albeit unquantified at this stage) resource issues in
Resource and respect of Borough-wide enforcement of revised byelaw
Property

Legal and Revisions to the current parking on grass verges byelaw, and
Statutory impact upon resources for taking each offence to court for action.
Crime and None identified at this stage.

Disorder

Sustainability

None identified at this stage.

Health and
wellbeing

None identified at this stage.

Risk Management
and Health and
Safety

There may be no realistic and safe alternative location for some of
these residents to park. This could displace the problem creating
further risks, and damaging Swale BC’s reputation.

Equality and
Diversity

None identified at this stage.

7. Appendices

8.1 None

9. Background Papers

9.1 None

Page 5




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

SWALE JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD

Meeting Date Monday 7" March 2016

Report Title Formal Objections — Traffic Regulation Orders for
Proposed Sittingbourne Market Re-location

Cabinet Member Clir David Simmons

SMT Lead Dave Thomas
Head of Service Dave Thomas
Lead Officers Mike Knowles (SBC)
Classification Open

Recommendations | Members are asked to note the contents of this report
and consider formal objections to the Traffic
Regulation Orders, and recommend that the proposed
Traffic Regulation Orders be progressed.

1.  Purpose of Report and Executive Summary

1.1 This report provides a summary of formal objections received in relation to the
recently advertised Traffic Regulation Orders to accommodate the proposed re-
location of the Sittingbourne Market into the High Street.

2. Background

2.1 A copy of the Notice of Intention for these Traffic Regulation Orders can be found in
Annex A. The proposals consist of amending the current times of the Saturday road
closure in the High Street, between the junctions of Station Street and Bell Road,
adding a Friday road closure between the junctions of Station Street and Central
Avenue, reversing the flow of traffic in Central Avenue between the mini-roundabout
and the High Street junction, and amending some of the existing parking restrictions
in the High Street.

3. Issue for Decision

3.1 Prior to the drafting of the Traffic Regulation Orders, the proposed changes to the
High Street road closure and reversal of traffic flow in the lower section of Central
Avenue were discussed with Bus Operators at the Swale Quality Bus Partnership
Meetings. Following some concerns raised, a separate meeting took place with Bus
Operators on 29t September 2015, to discuss in detail the proposals and the issues
raised.

Page 7



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

It was originally suggested that to accommodate the proposed closures, the traffic
flow in the lower section of Central Avenue could be reversed, to allow buses to
continue to serve the lower section of the High Street at the existing bus stop
outside St Michael's Church. In addition to this, it was proposed to install a new bus
stop in the lay-by at the bottom of Central Avenue to replace the bus stop further up
the High Street between the junctions of Central Avenue and Station Street.

However, at the meeting on 29t September, the Bus Operators advised that they
would prefer to run a consistent route for all days of the week, as producing a
different timetable for some days would create confusion with their passengers.
There was also a reluctance to run buses up and down Park Road due to vehicle
movements in and out of parking bays and to and from the entrance to the public car
park off of Avenue of Remembrance.

The Operators therefore stated that rather than running buses through the High
Street as they currently do, they felt serving the rear of The Forum would work
better. They added that the proposed changes should also include improved signing
to direct pedestrians from the High Street to the bus stop, and provision of new bus
stops in St Michael’s Road to line up with pedestrian access routes through to the
High Street.

The proposed Traffic Regulation Orders were amended to take these proposals into
account, and formally advertised on site and in local newspapers. A total of 6 formal
objections were received, and a copy of these objections can be found in Annex B.

Objections have been received from Swale Seniors Forum, who state that no
provision has been made for appropriate boarding points or shelters for users.
Objections have also been received stating that the bus stop at the rear of The
Forum is totally inadequate, especially when several buses arrive at one time, and
that the proposals will result in shoppers having to carry several bags across two
main roads to access the St Michael's Road stop. Comments have also been
received that removing the bus stops in the High Street will make life difficult for
elderly residents who would need to carry shopping from the lower end of the High
Street up to the Forum bus stop.

The Arriva Bus Company has formally objected to the proposed High Street closure
as they would need to withdraw all vehicles out of the High Street. They state that
the alternate route is not suitable for local buses, and that passengers will need to
walk further to access local bus services, some of which have mobility issues. They
state that this will have a detrimental impact on these passengers.

The Chalkwell Bus Company has submitted a comprehensive formal objection to the
proposals, stating that over the years they have developed local and rural routes for
the Sittingbourne area and that the proposals to close the High Street will have a
negative impact on patronage and revenue, putting the viability and sustainability of
some of these routes at risk. They also make comments around the unsuitability of
the alternative route via Central Avenue, and insist that bus services should
continue in the High Street. They also make many other comments including
reduction in High Street footfall, increased mileage, limited covered waiting areas for

Page 8



passengers, lack of clearly defined footpaths to and from The Forum to High Street

and increased costs which they feel the Borough Council would need to meet.

4. Recommendation

41

Members are asked to note the contents of this report and consider formal

objections to the Traffic Regulation Orders, and recommend that the proposed
Traffic Regulation Orders be progressed.

5. Implications

Issue

Implications

Corporate Plan

Embracing Localism
Open for Business
Healthy Environment

Financial, Costs associated with Traffic Regulation Order, and necessary

Resource and lining and signing. Costs associated with Traffic Sign Strategy,

Property Enforcement Policy, Feasibility and Safety Audit, possible costs
associated with Bus Route changes, Letter of Agreement and
appointment of highway contractor(s). The work will be funded
through the Regeneration Fund.

Legal and Traffic Regulation Orders to be sealed by Kent County Council.

Statutory

Crime and None.

Disorder

Sustainability

The initiative supports the economic vitality of the area and the
town centre in particular and provides an opportunity to
demonstrate localism in action through the contract award
(Sittingbourne Market Operative)

Health and
Wellbeing

An enhanced and improved market offer with greater visibility will
promote and support healthier lifestyles through partnership
working.

Risk Management
and Health and
Safety

The technical work which has yet to be undertaken will consider
these issues.

Equality and
Diversity

The consultation undertaken to date indicates that there will be
greater ‘buy-in’, support and project sustainability moving forward

Page 9




6.1

7.1

Appendices

Annex A — Copy of Traffic Regulation Orders Notice of Intention
Annex B — Copy of Formal Objections Received

Background Papers

None

Page 10



Naawese N\

THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL (HIGH STREET AND CENTRAL AVENUE, SITTINGBOURNE)
{(PROHIBITION OF TRAFFIC) ORDER 2015

In the Borough of Swale

THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL (BOROUGH OF SWALE) (SITTINGBOURNE TOWN CENTRE)
(ONE WAY STREETS) (AMENDMENT) ORDER 2015

THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL (BOROUGH OF SWALE) (VARIOUS ROADS, SITTINGBOURNE)
(WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND STREET PARKING PLACES)
(AMENDMENT NO. 16) ORDER 2015

Notice is hereby given that KENT COUNTY COUNCIL propose to make the above Orders under
sections 1(1), 2(1) to (3), 3(2), 4(1} and (2), 32(1), 35(1), 45, 46, 49 and 53 of the Road Traffic
Regulaticn Act 1984, and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the chief officer of
police in accordance with Part Il of Schedule 9 to the Act:

These Orders are proposed in connection with the planned relocation of Sittingbourne Market 1o
High Street (between Station Street and Central Avenue)

The effect of the first named Order will be to revoke the Swale Borough Council (High Street,
Sittingbourne) {Prohibition of Traffic) Order 1984 - which created a ‘Saturday only’ pedestrian zone -
and introduce a replacement Order which will

an Fridays - close to traffic the top end of the High Street (between the junctions of Station Street
and Central Avenue) between 7am and 5pm;

on Saturdays: close to traffic the High Street (between the junctions of Station Street and Bell Road)
and the lower end of Central Avenue (between the mini roundabout and the junction with the High
Street) between 7am and 5pm.

The effect of the second named Order will be to permanently reverse the existing ‘One-way' in
Central Avenue between the mini roundabout and High Street so that traffic flows northwards
towards High Street at all times.

The effect of the third named order will be

(a) in High Street (on the north side bstween Station Street and Central Avenue) to remove the bus
stop and to provide additicnal 20 minute free parking bays in the lay-by nearest Station Streei
(outside 114-124). The north side lay by nearest Central Avenue (outside 90-118) will be split so as
to provide (i) disabled persons vehicle parking places fronting 98-108 between 7am and 7pm and (ii)
a goods vehicle loading bay fronting 90-96 between 7am and 7pm. The whole length (90-108) will
be a Taxi Rank between 7pm and 7am.

(b} in the lay-by on the northern side outside St Michael’s Church to remove the bus stop where will
then be prohibited between 7am and 7pm (single yellow line marking). Loading and loading will be
permitted during these times and disabled persons vehicles will be able to wait for up to three hours.
The whole length will be a Taxi Rank between 7pm and 7am.

{c) in High Street on the southern side (east of Central Avenue fronting 69-79) the existing 20 minute
free parking will be split to provide a disabled persons vehicle parking place for up to 4 cars in the 22
metres fronting 73-79. The remainder will remain 20 minute free parking bays.

Full details are contained in the draft Orders which, together with a statement of the Council's
reasons for proposing to make the Order, a map and a copy of any Orders which will be amended
by the proposed Orders may be examined at the Borough Council Offices, Swale House, East
Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT, during normal office hours.

If you wish to object to a proposed Order you should send the grounds for your objection in writing to
Technical Services, Council Offices, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT by12
ncon on Monday 4th January, 2016.

If you have any questions concerning the proposed Crder or require further information please
contact Swale Borough Council (01795 417125) during normal office hours.

This Notice is published on behalf of Kent County Council.

For publication In Sittingbourne Extra
week ending Friday 4 December, 2015 Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



AP  RERG—
@ M Eo3T, Well 54, SITUINGBONNE,

S e

Page 13



[6™ D ocomber Qo7 ! _

fm LQQ\OI)/V\CP QP tho Dlo«\to B

""a’t@’ﬁ) bmm 3 Ve i ELQ

‘}’!Ol]-\‘%t LA %.zbbmub’@\l Y |

and Lohon Tho m\mlr\o;bm‘

L‘B‘ea uwNS N

TR bbus éﬁl?yo “ _

T = P = S VAP P

QiE@QLtOLU\ Lolon <seve Lo b’\két?&i

omwo ok Lo =g Tunra

el Lohain o Dﬁio[g%i‘f“am
%\U@OQ;/\ as, l CiUf\/\ Inas To Ll/tc(

U\Q.u/' L&CLW uas oc o=y c::)\

s (oo to &gg@fﬁé: =4

cﬂr\o&ls /d, L“:WS ?4:?:7@,[,“
Q.Qm 1‘6,/{7]?\/ %’li”a/u% Nest VOQf%"}T\
tio 36??»\9,_(/ oD um/ vk 0t G SO
Lokhads e o 7 k 1
Youf’“ ) LMD/E)WQ,W\O/V\‘[ Cx P@U"C',Q_

/ A /‘TE“:D | -

Page 14



kw“@x = ]

QF:;S

Technical services

Council Offices

Swale House

East Straat

Sittingbourne

Kent

ME 10 3HT

Gear SiF/Madam

We' wish ta ohject very strongly to the p.roposals fn amendment 16 order 2015, about Sittingbourne High Street and in particular that
there will be no busas serving Sittingbourne High Street, If your proposals go through.

The High Street in Sittingbourne, as in most places has become less important and cut-of-town centres hecome more important.
This is net generally helpful to pecple who do not have thelr own private transport.

It'is aiso not generally helpful to the environment.

Curren'tw, accerding to a cross party report of the House of Commons, chaired by the then Conservative MP Tim Yeo, in 2010 Road vehicle
pellution kills arcund 30,000 people per year,

Air quality in Swale measured in St Pauls Street and Eaét Street Is already very poor and we will be interested to see any estimates from
your department about improvements or lack of them as a result of your proposals.

Our colleague Bernie Smith from Swale, senior forum who has a much better background on engineering issues than we do, will have
expressed his concern at the High Street closures.

We understand that you have apparently undertaken infarmal scundings about your plans, | as the former statistics examiner for the
then Chartered Institute of Transport {now the Chartered Institute of Transport and Loglstics) would be interested to know about your

sampling technigues to ensure that you have consulted a representative body of opinion.

in principle, we would bath ltke to see a market, preferably selling local poods and services so that there would be both a local multiplier
effect, and also possibly a reduction in the scandal that about 30% of food in the supermarkeat chain is wasted.

We would be interested in seeing any forecasts about what you think will be the expected outcomes for businesses in Sittingbourne High
Street and elsewhere.

Page 15

Lo S




k\\\‘ﬁ«z"ﬁ &
| am sorry for the delayed response but | would like to object to the closure of the Sittingbourne Highstreet for
-buses on a Friday for the Sittingbourne Market on behalf of Arriva.

This will cause significant problems to Arriva because if this proposal goes ahead we will have to withdraw all of our
vehicles out of the Highstreet. The alternative route proposal offered is not suitable for local buses. We cannot have

a different service pattern on a Friday compared to Monday to Thursday because will cause widespread confusion
for our passengers.

In addition, this proposal will require our passengers to walk further to access local bus services and some of our
customers have mobility issues and these changes will have a detrimental impact upon them.

We would like the opportunity to talk about this further with you and this can be done at the Quality Bus
Partnership in January. '

Kind Regards Q“%S RTINS .L\_

(® ARRIVA

a 08 conmpany

Page 16




COACH HIRE & TOURS

Swale Borough Council,
Technical Services,

Council Offices, O e Q. S
Swale House,

East Street,

Sittingbourne,

Kent .

ME10 3HT, " lanuary 4™ 2016

Dear Sir / Madam,
TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER — CLOSURE OF SITTINGBOURNE HIGH STREET

We would like to raise a formal objection on behalf of Chalkwell Garage & Coach Hire Ltd to the
proposed Traffic Regulation Order {TRO) to close Sittingbourne High Street to allow the relocation of
the Traders’ market on Fridays.

It is of particular concern that our earlier representations on this and similar proposals appear to
have been misunderstood, ignored and or misrepresented, even though our clear views were aired
at a number of Quality Bus Partnership megtings with Kent County Council and Swale Borough
Council,

Chalkwell is a local, family-owned business which has been trading in Sittingbourne for over eighty
years. As such, Chalkwell is now a substantial locat employer and contributor to the Swale economy
carrying thousands of passengers each day on our services.

Following deregulation of bus services we have tried over the years to develop local services
including the Sittingbourne Rural netwark which has been operated by Chalkwell since 2003. Initially
financially supported by Kent County Council, working in partnership with KCC Transport Planners
we have endeavoured to sustain and build upon these routes and to develop these commercially
where possible, decreasing the financial burden upon the County Council in what has become an
increasingly difficult financial climate for the Local Authorities and bus operators alike.

By their very nature these rural services provide an important link to Sittingbourne for the
surroundirj‘g communities and we have introduced further cross-town services to provide
connections to main shopping areas and transport hubs together with improved links to Sheppey,
Canterbury and the Medway Towns, all on a commercial basis at no direct cost to Kent County
Council or Swale Borough Council. However, the proposals to close Sittingbourne High Street to
traffic on Fridays will, in our view, have a negative impact on patronage and revenue thus putting
the viability and sustainability of some of these routes at risk.

« 16, 25, 33, 49, 53 and 70 seater coaches with
seat belts

« Execirtive coaches also available




-2-

Whilst in good faith we would wish to support Swale Boraugh Council in its wider aims of
regenerating the town centre we must be mindful of the effect any changes to the Highway network
would have upon the viability of the bus service network, a large proportion of which we provide.
Many of them, whether commercial or Kent County Council funded, are operated on a marginal
basis. Any increase in costs or decrease in revenue, however small, does therefore_ risk their
continued operation in part or in whole.

Withdrawing bus services from the High Street IS NOT our preferred option. We have simply
indicated that without a viable agreed alternative this change would force us to move services to the
St Michaels Road and Forum area, which will disacdvantage customers, increase our costs and
seriously risk damaging the level of bus service that we will be able to provide. The decision which
determines if this happens will be one made by Swale Borough Council who must, if it goes ahead,
accept the consequences of that action.

Our objection is based on the following:-

* Such a closure would have a serious detrimental effect on many of the bus services we and
~ other operators provide in and around Sittingbourne through failing to serve the stops in the
High Street that customers wish to use, forcing bus companies to serve less ideal locations,
and adding unnecessary time, mileage and costs to what are in many cases marginal
services.

¢ [t will make services less attractive to the travelling public. In our case our electronic
ticketing system shows a substantial number of passengers per weekday boarding at High
Street stops (This information is commercially sensitive but further detall can be made
available for discussion outside of the formal process). There are also a large number
alighting at these stops. This is where our customers wish the buses to stop, convenient to
High Street shops.

 ltis not practical to have different routes, stopping points and timetables on different days
of the week. This will only confuse current and potential users. The solution must be a
standard Monday to Friday timetable.

* No traffic modelling has been produced to help inform what the effect of closing the High
Street will be on traffic flow in the area. The High Street is already closed on a Saturday and
St Michaels road suffers from heavy traffic delays, and this is without normal peak Monday
to Fri:day commuter and school traffic that we would have, further exacerbating the
situation making services run late and less attractive to al| users young and old.

* Closure of the High Street will displace delivery vehicles and increase illegal parking in other
locations which will include any alternative road buses might use or stop in. Unless there are
continual parking patrols this will add to the existing highway congestion and delays which
Kent County Council has stated is already a problem for bus services,

Page 18




/ﬁ}:Mu;____ PR N PO Stodrcr
i

3-

¢ The closure of the High Street would only make congestion worse as further strain is put on
the road capacity of the alternative routes, St Michael’s Road and Park Road / Avenue of
Remembrance. We are extremely nervous about alterations to the traffic flow in
Sittingbourne, given events in recent years. For example, the change to the junction of
Milton Road and Eurolink Way and the removal of the roundabout created severe delays
both during and after, which had a significant impact on our business and other businesses
in the area.

¢ There has been a continuous downward pressure in recent years on the income bus
operators receive from school transport freedom passes (now Kent Young Person’s Travel
Pass), concessionary bus passes (ENCTS) and contracts to provide socially necessary bus
services. Central Government have also reduced Fuel Duty Rebate by 20%, meaning that the
viability of running commercial bus services is more sensitive to changes where the impact
to passengers daily routines are greater. -

e Asa result many loca! bus services have become increasingly financially marginal and must
be operated and scheduled as efficiently as poss‘ible with a minimum of spare time and
unnecessary mileage, For instance, a bus leaving point A will normally be planned to return
there to provide a Journey one or two hours later. There is no real scope to add in additional
running time without having to consider potentially unwelcome changes or loss of services.
See also the comment below regarding the initially suggested alternative route which
outlines the additional operating costs that might be caused.

e To be an attractive alternative to use of the private car bus services need to penetrate town
centres and not hide or wander around the outside serving less attractive stopping points. |
Those who are elderly or have mobility problems will be particularly affected by having to |
walk longer distances. -

s Without a viable alternative route and stopping places buses will be displaced from the High
Street to the stops behind the Farum which are already known to be operating at, or
beyond, capacity. This area will become overloaded and congested with buses waiting for a
space to become clear (causing further delays!).

¢ Itis likely that this may result in some eastbound services being further displaced to stops at
either the Railway Station which has limited waiting areas for elderly customers and is not
ideal for a large numbers of students to wait at, or north side of St Michaels Road. Until the
Sp"'i,rit of Sittingbourne development and associated bus stops are completed this area will be
lacking in sufficient bus stops and suitable covered accommodation for waiting customers
and vehicles.

s Thereis not a clearly defined path for customers to walk to/from the rear of the Forum to
the High Street. The current walk is unpleasant and somewhat convoluted. While the Spirit
of Sittingbourne development will eventually alter the dynamic of the Town Centre and the
footfall in the general area, the current layout does not support this idea and therefore

Page 19



4-

immediately buses cease to serve the High Street bus patronage and revenue is likely to be
adversely affected.

Bus operators are required to give the Traffic Commissioner a MINIMUM of 56 days notice
of any change to routes or timetables (we would also require time to prepare these, and
consultation with Kent County Council would also have to take place to ensure that any of
the services that we operate on their behalf are amended with their agreement). This is a
legal requirement and not something that operators can vary. "

Chalkwell are not currently expecting to make any network changes and so any that are
required by a closure of the High Street will be an additional unplanned cost. For each bus
service registration that requires a change a payment of £60 must be made to the Office of
The Traffic Commissioner and there is the further cost incurred in preparing and submitting
the variation.

In addition we will also have to print and issue new timetables, amend our website, update
electronic ticketing system, drivers’ duties and destination blind systems and change the
majority of bus stop displays throughout our network, all of which will incur us additional
costs,

Swatie Borough Council would be required to meet the above costs if the Traffic Regulation
Order is confirmed as Chalkwell are not instigating the changes — this was discussed at
recent Quality Bus Partnership (QBP) meetings at Swale Council offices also attended by
Kent County Council Transport Planners.

Any subsequent change(s) would have the same costs and resource implications.

INITIAL PROPOSAL BY SWALE BOROUGH COUNCIL FOR RE-RQUTING

After our initial response to the proposal to close the High Street it was suggested that services
could be diverted by Central Avenue, Avenue of Remiembrance and East Street. Whilst we
welcomed the attempt to try and find a potential solution it was impractical.

The diversion would add 0.4 miles to thirty eight eastbound journeys every Friday where our
service operates, This approximates to 775 miles a year per weekday of operation. (The
additional cost of the mileage is commercially sensitive but can be made available for
discussion outside of the formal process).

As commented on by Kent County Council it is likely that this route would be subject to
unacceptable traffic congestion and delays, and they also raised concerns on the suitability
of the route for buses (in particular the proposed right turn from Central Avenue into The
High Street and vehicles moving in and out of parking spaces near The Swallows, Police
Station and the Post Office).

Page 20



5.

These points have not been answered by Swale Borough Council; again these issues were
raised by us and Arriva at recent QBP meetings with Swale Council,

e We estimated that this or a similar diversion would add 4 or 5 minutes to the running time
of each journey. Not due just to the extra mileage but also the additional traffic and on
street (illegal) parking the closure will inevitably cause,

e |t would be impossible to add in an extra 4 or 5 minutes an each eastbound journey and
maintain clock face half-hourly or hourly timetables. A major revision of services would be
required including adding in at least one extra off-peak bus{es) and driver(s) into our
schedules for no discernible additional income. It is more likely that such services will be less
attractive to customers and we could instead see a reduction in revenue. There would be a
considerable additional cost to us for the provision of additional resources against which no
additional revenue can be expected (These additional costs are commercially sensitive but
can be made available for discussion outside of the formal process}. Would this cost be met
by Swale Borough Council?

¢ The financial impact of potential reduced passenger numbers is not included in the above
figures.

CONCLUSION

Changes in ridership on the service across the whole week can very quickly lead to a service
becoming unviable. Once someone decides to use a car instead of a bus they are not only lost
income to the operator but poténtially to the local town as well as they may choose to shop out of
town instead.

it is in all of our interests, including the market stallholders, to avoid this possibility. All retailers need
buses as part of the process of feeding them with customers,

It is Important that bus services in Sittingbourne have a high visibility and availability to the public
and the best place for this is by continuing to serve the High Street on each weekday; buses need to
be at the heart of the town centre not out of sight at the rear of the Forum. This is only going to be
exacerbated when Spirit of Sittingbourne start construction work on the multi-story car park and
other changes to the area,

Our preferred option is to keep regular, frequent bus services in the High Street where aur
customers want them, but we are receptive to any other viable alternative routes and stopping
places and we are prepared to consider them and work with the Council to reach a suitable solution
that fits all customers and rasidents’ needs. Fundamentally getting mare passengers who in turn
become Market Customers is the correct solution for all involved parties including established
Sittingbourne High Street retailers. Closure of Sittingbourne High Street on Fridays and the
consequential relocation of Monday to Friday bus services clearly doaes not meet this objective,

Page 21



-5~

If you decide to go ahead with this closure it leaves us (and other bus service providers) with NO
currently viable alternatives. We will NOT in such circumstance be willingly withdrawing bus services
from the High Street as it will not be us who have made the decision to close it.

That decision is not ours to make, but yours. The only alternate you have so far suggested is
impractical and would have an adverse effect on the bus network and cost that we as bus operators
would be unable to bear.

We also object to comments released to the local press suggesting that we have decided to
withdraw bus services from the High Street and have made the local pyblications aware of the
misinterpretation. :

There is an obvious risk that we may have to consider adjusting or reducing service provision to
account for any additional unmet costs or reductions in revenue. This is NOT our preferred option or
choice.

As has already been clearly indicated we are a private business and many of these bus sevvices are
marginal at best. We cannot reasonably be expected to accept a situation when we are then to
operate them at a financial loss. Kent County Council have in recent meetings indicated that in the
current financial climate they will NOT have the budget available to meet any of the additional costs
we have listed above for either those commercially provided services, those operated on behalf of
KCC, or for replacement of services that may need to be withdrawn.

The proposed closure of Sittingbourne High Street on Fridays demonstrates that there is an apparent
lack of understanding within Swale Borough Council of the impact this closure will have on local bus
services, the part that bus services play in providing footfall to High Street traders, and a lack of
support by SBC for the provision and further development of bus services in and around
Sittingbourne. y

The proposed TRO is counter-productive to the fundamental purpose of regenerating Sittingbourne
Town Centre and must not be granted. An alternative site should be found for Sittingbourne Market
on Fridays and the High Street remain open to buses and general traffic.

Yours faithfully

Page 22



k“ W% = .

© Kﬁﬁ-@’i\%ﬁ % .

- Mear | 8“”/: ) fead | Mgk e TS Qow an Lam o
Con slank Bus wage | Wc&'m"ﬂé{mﬁq'b mu\ vo!r\smﬁdnw Cunel Q{Zf
Qan o te Foricm on thatoes &makor wyl o tasise,
| hawe e Gﬁpé%‘uiﬁﬂé'}-\ for U HM&&T@M@OQ L\;b?m th
e Pty th that- haso b bebfo clese bhe wast fn
Bumss euery dleug us WicthanKalile , 1 t}zﬂzn;g o Cluds 'wnbha l
%
]

ConnatTms : “Tha Buo Siapanlicte Glrgounh 2ot 1o uasel consfantt
by facel SOPPIng ‘in The Wigh Streat- den mWQO“ULiWﬁ golb~ |
Voo | vve Benun To shopin Tese: uills oftmvs , | Luve GM?MV
ek ond \ una By STop culnda Bt Mich sel chureds consiantlg -

Wm}&@&m k\tu‘clgotjg Farm WO B o Ter wiealchadr 15 howe T

\63? o o E‘mﬁpp\rrﬁ Forum et trodRus s | ko ol Lol af- ;
Qe0ple Bhopeingin Lelland Wi S Mok Sto@ s Comya
\‘ch,\ﬁ Q}cm-&@'@@@\a ) Mw'{‘@c&r\sxg up‘mu thadr i’)‘urbp In
From alomd 1nodly 15 c o home, b 50 e
) N S Celch a lbug home, . | che nb- ke So .
NOoI o2 v thasy maght SEpuoing faloned and whar tcoutel
\_‘%\iuj\o.q, v hae, ﬂ’-ﬂu\da 0 Burcen Goyte Wwho Sho . o
guw\owgo wored Coadiely Groveous e P S
EQO TS Then 800N T Uy Rorum Yoo, 2 how
o Voup foople £ hopping
L\\U &Q QAC}SM‘& oy ; ™ 5 < ' " :
o s T e s
) &5 Young (opta Plocsss vecorgictar -
Thare 1> no yeason e Slnes coon .
TS SWws dle, e ot - Pparts Surly,
W o S e D8 i~ o wa el -

1

B _
Nichoelych .
ok Be ueg ing
N ove Blon nuhmcuk‘\v(\s W(‘ﬂ_;‘?kc Wb



\ \(\ww, jsPoKum o bhe bus OMEaniL,  ancl H«ﬂj Crreg
\’JOUr\ Sl Pre Aosure .’}\fj‘ﬂr\uw Hrews puditie
Cunel. @a UoouTuwd 0% koomﬁ Grencla, 3 Weclont™ wouk-Tg

\Oﬁa‘&o U ‘D\m.@a . _\V\B&re %dcum/% o POai¥Ton Ly Ltk
Q«ao_& Srok. &%MW Closura_

dl., u)mv\ W ok peopl o chfo %ﬂ“ MU ij Inewae T lomq
@%@J" U‘I\SUN\ Ui\m_pm:ad% da,\ql&mu\w v\.@b*— »

P\MW TS \dw.s\dr osyiren. much Chra QJ\QB\A.N @wwxwm

Quaek Fie \(\o\dsm%q'w ) T\'\Q Qﬁuﬂmn wcﬂ.mww Fudd sow |

St Ok Care portl Un Fron dh-the STolen~ 1 (ool shaal wiedht,
Wotely g omel S ddes vemmmtmﬁm &@Juwﬂ \M:go?, aeb ,

D@ S &u&ﬂﬁ Trwndd, ok H\QAQ wa(b(e tocld &!Q\/\mi:pﬂ Qoiny 15 o

Corupn WosbResef « Juw e oura Vol <t imght S\\QLCQJW.L/,ES et
Unsofe Bhase y O @n cor pauks ane much Sofor 08 Py for
\adise mBravraw Ny W&WW Conliml Corrpaske 13 &nw&mg,@
el 18 comng \ﬁl’OT@t.uy\ tred SRerel MO Wf&(nm our-Shom @‘qm
Vo sqasant closing e, Rorum Caruk Tomueingin o

Ve ool Ve wodth eram AN\ w\mﬂdﬁw e o QJ.LL)@.%, P-LM./‘\
eamed AL Ll To Bundd @ 2 porce, SO w\m_q Uoga -,

LQ ST et Syualed o Gunemed Hare w ol ok Gl (e d Gwm«q
\wa_mng Ay o QxawnKjﬂ mu.m,l cz&uw&u t’b\u}mm \GOU.SI«JV“

Do vou, vk reoltn o addsue oy rrawe “ONBugh C@g@smfg ve s imendts
U e Ser alleudis ard @ Ui Srusted On o Rorum Car paric pon
woted doo Wling Bhaur treuls ssusay pol-uresing wmene s mooing
g_}p % \\')&G.Q)}%»MM 'hQBJ&Q & (31??'31'\.1 CLQ)‘QSL Cvirg e v F‘CHT\\\LQ‘G @l 80
Zogeral Wnos O FU- 0 fTma v Wocunk o) offond  §%-20ch Sowhotygoing
Tio We vsuoene_ | usank™ and | \Qmw @ Vot~ of gjmﬂ\ff-cmw whe weak~
“hayy ook offorl ofurmuky of W of £z qaw&. V2L nouwe pleana,
1 Lonsicher Gunel S Upper lonek W o QQ’N@R e U Bhe AV ORaa bier ot
o\d odaon Ciiame T hanik V(Dux

Page 24

H‘&m STory ¢ Vil ned, Wethud ang v W one Wbl Lue i olan, bhe ¢



Agenda Iltem 8

SWALE JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD

Meeting Date Monday 7" March 2016

Report Title Formal Objections to Traffic Regulation Order Am 17
Cabinet Member Clir David Simmons

SMT Lead Dave Thomas

Head of Service Dave Thomas

Lead Officer Mike Knowles (SBC)

Classification Open

Recommendations | Members are asked to note the contents of this report
and consider formal objections to the Traffic
Regulation Order, and recommend that the proposed
Traffic Regulation Order be progressed.

1. Purpose of Report and Executive Summary

1.1 This report provides a summary of formal objections received in relation to the
recently advertised Traffic Regulation Order Swale Amendment 17.

2. Background

2.1 The Traffic Order includes proposed amendments to various parking restrictions in
the Borough, some of which have previously been reported to the Swale Joint
Transportation Board and subsequently recommended for progression. A copy of
the Traffic Regulation Order can be found in Annex A, with the proposals that have
received formal objections highlighted. A copy of the formal objections received can
be found in Annex B.

3. Issue for Decision

Grayshott Close, Sittingbourne — Proposed Single Yellow Line

3.1 Aninformal consultation took place with residents back in August 2015, on
proposals to install a single yellow line on the east side of Grayshott Close following
requests from residents. Of the 22 properties consulted, 13 responses were
received all supporting the proposals.

3.2  The results of the informal consultation were reported to the Joint Transportation

Board, and it was recommended that the proposed restrictions be implemented, plus
a short section of double yellow lines around the turning head of the road and a

Page 25



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

41

slight extension to the existing double yellow lines at the Highsted Road junction,
both as a result of comments received during the consultation.

Three letters have been received regarding the advertised Traffic Regulation Order
for Grayshott Close, from residents of Highsted Road and Farm Crescent. Only one
of the letters received stated that it was a formal objection to the proposals, but in
view of the comments made all three letters have been taken as objections.

All three objectors have expressed concern that the proposed restrictions in
Grayshott Close will displace parked vehicles into nearby roads such as Highsted
Road and Farm Crescent, and have asked that any restrictions are undertaken in
conjunction with these adjoining roads and other nearby roads.

The parking issues in Highsted Road have previously been brought to the attention
of Kent County Council Highways who at the time stated they would not support
parking restrictions in Highsted Road as they felt it would lead to an increase in
traffic speeds. It is also understood that there is not a history of personal injury
crashes at this location and as such a scheme to introduce waiting restrictions would
be unlikely to attract funding.

Church Road, Eastchurch — Disabled Persons Parking Bay

Also included in the advertised Traffic Regulation Order is a disabled persons
parking bay outside of 30 Church Road in Eastchurch. The bay has been in place
for some time as an advisory bay, and the proposed Traffic Order would formalise
the bay to make it enforceable.

Two written objections have been received, both stating a number of reasons for the
objections including the fact that there are already two existing disabled bays in this
section of road. We have now written to the objectors to clarify that there is not a
third disabled bay proposed for this location, and the Traffic Order is formalising one
of the existing bays. The other bay, outside of the property next door, was included
in a Traffic Order back in 2014.

The objectors have also been advised that the Borough Council works within the
guidelines issued by Kent County Council, and if an applicant meets the necessary
criteria we cannot refuse the bay. It is also KCC who issue blue badges and any
eligibility issues should be taken up with the County Council.

Recommendation

Members are asked to note the contents of this report and consider formal
objections to the Traffic Regulation Order, and recommend that the proposed Traffic
Regulation Order be progressed.

Page 26



5. Implications

Issue

Implications

Corporate Plan

Improving Community Safety through safer Highways.

Financial, Costs associated with Traffic Regulation Order, and necessary
Resource and lining and signing.

Property

Legal and Traffic Regulation Orders to be sealed by Kent County Council.
Statutory

Crime and None at this stage.

Disorder

Risk Management
and Health and
Safety

None identified at this stage.

Equality and
Diversity

None identified at this stage.

Sustainability

None identified at this stage.

6. Appendices

6.1  Annex A — Copy of Traffic Regulation Order with Objections Highlighted
Annex B — Copy of Formal Objections Received

7. Background Papers

71 None

Page 27




This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX A

THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL (VARIOUS ROADS, BOROUGH OF SWALE)
(WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND STREET PARKING PLACES)
(AMENDMENT No. 17) ORDER 2016
S FORMAL OBJECTIONS RECEIVED

The Council of the County of Kent in exercise of their powers under sections 1(1), 2(1) to (3), 3(2), 4(1)
and (2), 32(1), 35(1), 45, 46, 49 and 53 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, and of all other enabling
powers, and after consultation with the chief officer of police in accordance with Paragraph 20 of Schedule
9 to the Act, propose to make the following Order:-

A - This Order may be cited as the Kent County Council (Various Roads, Borough of Swale) (Waiting
Restrictions and Street Parking Places) Amendment 17 Order 2016 and shall come into force on the xx day

of xxxxx, 2016.

B. the Kent County Council (Various Roads, Borough of Swale) (Waiting Restrictions and Street Parking
Places) (Consolidation) Order 2010 shall have effect as though -

Taxi Ranks
The following shall replace the existing TABLE (Article 13) for Taxi Ranks in the Faversham Area:-

TABLE
(Article 13)

Taxi Ranks

1 2 3 4

Item Name of Road Specified Length Days and times on
which restrictions

apply

Roads in Faversham

¥ EESEIE- SMITH DRIVE On-the southern-side- Atall-times

6-Hugh Place

21 STATION ROAD On the northern side from a At all times
point in line with the
boundary of 1/2 Station
Road for a distance of 9
metres in a westerly
direction

32 STATION ROAD On the southern side At all times
between points 3 metres east
and 11 metres west of the
boundary of 1/2 Station
Road

43 STONE STREET On the northern side At all times
between points 1 metre east
and 10 metres west of the
boundary of 38/38a Stone




Loading Bays

The following shall replace the existing TABLE (Article 23 (3)) for Loading Bays

TABLE
(Article 23 (3))

MINSTER

line with the eastern boundary of
19-23 Queens Road for a distance
of 10 metres in a westerly direction

1 2 3 4 5
Item Name of Road Length of road Days on which Times at which
restriction restriction
applies applies
1 HIGH STREET, On the northern side from a point Daily 7am to 7pm
SITTINGBOURNE | 27 metres east of the boundary of
108/110 High Street, in an easterly
direction for a distance 30 metres;
2 HIGH STREET, On the northern side from a point Daily 7am to 7pm
SITTINGBOURNE | opposite the eastern boundary of 23
High Street for a distance of 28
metres in an easterly direction;
3 HIGH STREET South Side from a point 19 metres | Monday to 8.00 am -
SHEERNESS east of Bridge Road to a point 30 Saturday 6.00 pm
metres east of Bridge Road with waiting
limited to 20
Minutes (No
Return 1
Hour)
4 TRINITY PLACE from a point in line with the rear Daily At all times
SHEERNESS boundary of 20/22 Broadway for a
distance of 7 metres in an easterly
direction
5 QUEENS ROAD On the south side from a point in Daily At all times

Page 30




In the Schedules to the Order

FIRST SCHEDULE

Roads in Faversham

Oare Creek, Oare

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in the correct alphabetical

sequence:

OARE CREEK

Oare Road, Oare

(1) On both sides of the road, from the eastern kerbline of Oare Road for a
distance of 7 metres in an easterly direction;

(2) On both sides of the access road to Brett Aggregates quarry, from the southern
kerbline of Oare Creek for a distance of 18 metres in a south-eastern direction.

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing

entry:

OARE ROAD

(1) On the eastern side

(a) from a point 122-metresnorth-of John Hall Close- 16 metres north of the
centre of the junction of Oare Creek to the junction of Windmill Lane

(b) between points 35 metres north and 35 metres south of the centre of the
junction of Lakeside Avenue

(2) On the western side

(a) from the junction of Seager Road to the junction of Lakeside Avenue

(b) from the junction with Seager Road for a distance of 32 metres in a
northerly direction

(©) from 22 metres north of John Hall Close to 6 metres south of Southern
GIST entrance

(d) from the GIST northern entrance for a distance of 6 metres in a southerly
direction
(e) From the centre of the junction of Lakeside Avenue for a distance of 65

metres in a southerly direction.

Page 31



Preston Street

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing

entry:

PRESTON STREET

(1) On the eastern side

(a) from the junction with East Street to a point in line with the boundary of 6/6a
Preston Street

(b) from a point in line with the northern building line of 19a Preston Street to a
point in line with the boundary of 25/26 Preston Street

(c) between points 17 metres and 28 metres south of the boundary of 24 - 25
Preston Street;

(d) between southern boundary of 37 Preston Street and a point 15 metres south
of that point;

(e) from the junction with Station Road a point opposite the boundary of 55a/56
Preston Street;

(f) from the southern kerbline of Station Road, for a distance of 5 metres in a
southerly direction;

(g) from a point in line 1 metre north of the southern boundary of 14 Preston
Street to a point 1 metre south of the northern boundary of the Alexander
Centre, 15 Preston Street, across the entrance of Gatefield Lane.

(2) On the western side

(a) from a point in line with the southern boundary of 56 Preston Street the
northern kerbline of Forbes Road;

(b) from the southern kerbline of Forbes Road, south to the end of the road.
(c) between a point in line with the southern boundary of 64 Preston Street to a
point 3 metres south of the southern boundary of 70 Preston Street;

(d) from a point opposite the boundary of Alexander Centre and 18 Preston
Street to the junction with Market Street.

Page 32



The Street, Boughton-under-Blean

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing

entry:

THE STREET, BOUGHTON-UNDER-BLEAN

(1) On both sides.
(a) from Stockers Hill to a point 22 metres east of the junction with Bull Lane;

(b) between points 154 metres and 172 metres east of the junction with Bull
Lane;

(c) between points 369 metres and 377 metres east of the junction with Bull
Lane.

(2) On the northern side between points 267 metres and 291 metres east of the
junction with Bull Lane.

(3) On the southern side

(a) between points 267 metres and 282 metres east of the junction with Bull
Lane;

(b) between points 20 metres west and 20 metres east of the junction with The
Ridgeway;

(c) between points 13 metres west and 15 metres east of the junction with
Arthur Kennedy Close;

(d) from a point 2 metres east of the western boundary of 203 The Street, for a
distance of 17 metres in a westerly direction.

Roads in Queenborough

Borough Road

The following shall be deleted from the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time]:

BOROUGH ROAD

Dumergue Avenue

On both sides from the southern kerbline of Main Road for a distance of 10 metres
in a southerly direction

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing

entry:

DUMERGUE AVENUE

On both sides from the northern kerb line of Main Road for a distance of 10

5 metres in a northerlRlﬂ@@)133



Gordon Avenue

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing
entry:

GORDON AVENUE On both sides from the southern kerbline of Main Road for a distance of 40 5
metres in a southerly direction.

Harold Street

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing
entry:

HAROLD STREET On both sides from the southern kerbline of Main Road for a distance of 40 5
metres in a southerly direction.

Main Road

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing
entry:

MAIN ROAD (1) On the southern side

(a) from the junction of Rushenden Road, for a distance of 110 metres in an
easterly direction

(b) from the western kerbline of Gordon Avenue for a distance of 0 5 metresin a
westerly direction

(c) from the eastern kerbline of Gordon Avenue for a distance of +8 5 metres in
an easterly direction

(d) from the eastern kerbline of Harold Street for a distance of 48 5 metres in an
easterly direction

(e) from the western kerbline of Harold Street for a distance of 48 5 metres in a
westerly direction

(f) from the eastern kerbline of Stanley Avenue for a distance of 48 5 metres in
an easterly direction

(g) from the western kerbline of Stanley Avenue for a distance of 10 5 metres in
a westerly direction

(2) On the northern side

(a) from the easterIR&gBeBKbastlemere Avenue for a distance of 12



metres in an easterly direction

(b) from the western kerbline of Castlemere Avenue for a distance of 12
metres in a westerly direction

(c) from the eastern kerbline of Dumergue Avenue for a distance of 10 5
metres in an easterly direction

(d) from the western kerbline of Dumergue Avenue for a distance of 48 5
metres in a westerly direction

Stanley Avenue

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing
entry:

STANLEY AVENUE On both sides from the southern kerbline of Main Road for a distance of +8 5
metres in a southerly direction.

Sterling Road

The following shall be deleted from the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time]:

STERLING ROAD On both sides from the northern kerbline of Main Road for a distance of 10 metres
in a northerly direction

Roads in Sheerness
Berridge Road

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in the correct alphabetical
sequence:

BERRIDGE ROAD On both sides, from the south-western kerbline of Winstanley Road for a distance
of 5 metres in a south-westerly direction.
Broadway

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing
entry:

BROADWAY (1) On the northern side

(a) from the junction with High Street to a point in line with the eastern building
line of 35 Broadway;

(b) from a point 17 metres west of the western kerbline of Strode Crescent, east

to the boundary with Broadway/Marine Parade opposite the junction of Alma
Road. %@%ﬁ%ﬁ@@aééd;



(2) On the southern side from the junction with High Street to a point 15 metres
east of the junction with Strode Crescent.

Esplanade

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [ No Waiting At Any Time] in the correct alphabetical
sequence:

ESPLANADE On the north side, from the junction with Royal Road east to a point 18 metres

east of the western building line of Sheerness Swimming Pool, including the
turning head.

Marine Parade

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing
entry:

MARINE PARADE
(1) On both sides, from a point in line with the western building line of 105
Marine Parade to a point in line with the boundary of 127/129 Marine Parade
(2) On the northern side
(a) from the boundary of Broadway/Marine Parade opposite the junction of
Alma Road, east to a point in line with the boundary of 2/3 Redan Place;
(b) from a point 1 metre west of the centre of the junction with Berridge Road,
east to a point opposite the centre of the junction of Invicta Road;
(3) On the southern side
(a) from a point in line with the boundary of 44/45 Marine Parade to a point in
line with the boundary of 39/40 Marine Parade;
(b) from a point in line with the boundary of 21/22 Marine Parade, west to the
boundary of Marine Parade/Broadway at the junction with Alma Road.
Winstanley Road

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing
entry:

WINSTANLEY ROAD (1) On both sides

(a) from a point 6 metres northwest of the north-western kerbline of Invicta
Road to a point 6 metres southeast of the south-eastern kerbline of Invicta Road;

(b) from the junction with Strode Crescent for a distance of 7 metres in a south-
easterly direction;

Page 36



(¢) from the north-western kerbline of Alma Road for a distance of 6 metres in a
north-westerly direction;

(d) from the south-eastern kerbline of Alma Road for a distance of 6 metres in a
south-easterly direction;

(e) from the north-western kerbline of Invicta Road for a distance of 6 metres in
a north-westerly direction.

(2) On the north-eastern side

(a) from a point 6 metres northwest of the north-western kerbline of Alexandra
Road to a point 6 metres southeast of the south-eastern kerbline of Alexandra
Road;

(b) from a point 6 metres northwest of the north-western kerbline of Wellesley
Road to a point 6 metres southeast of the south-eastern kerbline of Wellesley
Road;

(3) On the south-western side, from a point 5 metres northwest of the north-
western kerbline of Winstanley Road to a point 5 metres southeast of the south-
eastern kerbline of Winstanley Road.

Roads in Sittingbourne

Gadby Road

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in the correct alphabetical

sequence:

GADBY ROAD

Grayshott Close

(1) On the north side from the western kerbline of Staplehurst Road for a distance
of 14 metres in a westerly direction.

(2) On the south side from the western kerbline of Staplehurst Road for a distance
of 19 metres in a westerly direction.

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing

entry:

GRAYSHOTT CLOSE On both sides

(a) from the junction with Highsted Road for a distance of 5 10 metres in a
northerly direction;

(b) from a point in line with and opposite the boundary of 15/17 Grayshott
Close around the turning head at the northern end of Grayshott Close.

Page 37



Sandford Road

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in the correct

alphabetical sequence:

SANDFORD ROAD

Staplehurst Road

On both sides of the road, from the northern kerbline of London Road for a
distance of 22 metres in a northerly direction.

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing

entry:

STAPLEHURST ROAD

The Street, Borden

(1) On the northern side from the junction with Crown Road/Chalkwell Road
to a point 195 metres west of the western building line of 1 Windmill Road;

(2) On the southern side

(a) from the junction with Crown Road/Chalkwell Road to a point in line
with the boundary of 9/11 Staplehurst Road;

(b) from a point in line with the western building line of 43 Staplehurst Road
to a point 195 metres west of the western building line of 1 Windmill Road.

(3) On the north-western side

(a) between points 6 metres and 12 metres northeast of the boundary of 60
and 64 Staplehurst Road;

(b) between a point in line with the boundary of 158/160 Staplehurst Road
and a point in line with the boundary of 162/164 Staplehurst Road

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing

entry:

THE STREET, BORDEN

(1) On the south side, from a point 10 metres west of the western kerbline of
Coppins Lane to a point 10 metres east of the eastern kerbline of Coppins Lane.

(2) On both sides, from the eastern kerbline of Wises Lane to a point 10 metres
east of the eastern end of the central traffic island.

Page 38



Wises Lane

The following shall be inserted in the First Schedule [No Waiting At Any Time] in place of the existing

entry:

WISES LANE

THIRD SCHEDULE
Roads in Faversham

Preston Street

(1) On the eastern side

(a) from the junction with London Road for a distance of 54 metres in a
southerly direction;

(b) from the junction with Grove Park Avenue for a distance of 29 metres in
a southerly direction;

(c) from a point 7 metres north of the northern kerbline of the northern
junction with Brier Road to a point 7 metres south of the southern kerbline of

the northern junction of Brier Road;

(d) from a point in line with the boundary of 65/67 Wises Lane to a point in
line with the southern boundary of 71 Wises Lane;

(e) from a point in line with the southern building line of Barrow House to a
point 24 metres north of the centre of the traffic island.

(2) On the western side

(a) from the junction with London Road, southwards to a point in line with the
boundary of 10/10a Wises Lane;

(b) between points 13 metres north and 13 metres south of the centre of the
Junction of Dental Close.

The following shall be inserted in the Third Schedule [Daytime Waiting Restrictions] in place of the

existing entry:

1 2 3 4
Name of Road Length of road Days on which Times at which
restriction restriction
applies applies

Roads in Faversham

PRESTON STREET

(1) On the western side

(a) between the southern boundary of 56 Monday to 3.30am to
Preston Street and [ReggegheBpoundary of Saturday 5.00pm




1 2 3 4
Name of Road Length of road Days on which Times at which
restriction restriction
applies applies

64 Preston Street;

(b) between a point 3 metres south of the Monday to 6am to 6pm

southern boundary of 70 Preston Street and a | Sunday

point opposite the boundary of the Alexander

Centre/18 Preston Street

(2) On the eastern side

(a) between a point in line w1th the boundary Monday to 6am t0 6pm

of 6/6a Preston Street and a point 1 metre Sunday

north of the southern boundary of 14 Preston

Street;

(b) from a point 1 metre south of the northern

boundary of the Alexander Centre, 15

Preston Street, to a point in line with the

northern building line of 19a Preston Street.

Roads in Sheerness
Marine Parade

The following shall be inserted in the Third Schedule [Daytime Waiting Restrictions] in place of the
existing entry:

1 2 3 4
Name of Road Length of road Days on which || Times at which
restriction restriction
applies applies

Roads in Sheerness in the Borough of Swale

MARINE (1) On the northern side On all days gggam to

.30pm

PARADE P

(a) from a point 5 metres east of the junction with
Richmond Street to a point opposite the boundary
of 62/63 Marine Parade;

Hromapotnttmetreeastof-the-boundary-of-
2 0/43b Marine Parad . o

e} (b) from a pointfoppepee hf)boundary of




(a) from a point in line with the boundary of
22/23 21/22 Marine Parade to a point in line with
the boundary of 39/40 Marine Parade;

(b) from a point in line with the western building
line of 105 Marine Parade to a point in line with
the boundary of 85/87 Marine Parade.

1 2 3 4
Name of Road Length of road Days on which || Times at which
restriction restriction
applies applies
74/75 Marine Parade to a point eppesite in line
with the boundary of 94/9596 Marine Parade;
&3 (c) from a point opposite the boundary of
127/129 Marine Parade to a point opposite the
western boundary of the Ship on Shore Public
House;
On all days
(2) On the southern side
8.30am to
6.30pm

Roads in Sittingbourne

Anselm Close

The following shall be inserted into the Third Schedule [Daytime Waiting Restrictions] in place of the
existing entry or in the correct alphabetical sequence:

of 15/17 Grayshott Cl(l)_g‘e.

1 2 3 4
Name of Road Length of road Days on which || Times at which
restriction restriction
applies applies
Roads in Sittingbourne and Milton
ANSELM CLOSE For the entire length of both sides except Monday to
(a) on the northern side from the junction with Friday +0an-te-
Ufton Lane for a distance of 27 metres in an Ham
easterly direction; 8am to
6pm
(b) on the southern side from the junction with
Ufton Lane to a point opposite the boundary of
16/17 Anselm Close.
GRAYSHOTT On the south eastern side from a point 10 metres | Monday to
CLOSE northeast of the north eastern kerbline of Friday 8am to
Highsted Road to a point opposite the boundary 5pm

~na-A14
mayc =41




3 No. OBJECTIONS RECEIVED - GRAYSHOTT CLOSE, SITTINGBOURNE - PROPOSED
SINGLE YELLOW LINES

SIXTH SCHEDULE
Roads in Faversham
Thomas Road, Faversham

The following shall be inserted into the Sixth Schedule [ Time Limited Waiting Restrictions] in the correct
alphabetical sequence:

1 2 3 4 5
Name of Road Length of road Days and Maximum Period to
times on permitted elapse since
which waiting time last period of
restriction permitted
applies waiting

Roads in Faversham

THOMAS (1) On the southern side, between points 3 lgflonc:jay to 30 minutes 2 hours
ROAD metres west and 4 metres east of the rear atuecay
boundary of 117 and 118 West Street $.30am to
5.30pm

(2) On the western side, between points 26
metres north and H- 15 metres north of the
rear boundary of 4 and 5 Court Street

SEVENTH SCHEDULE

The following shall be inserted into the Seventh Schedule [ Parking Places for Disabled Persons Vehicles]
in place of the existing entry or in the correct alphabetical sequence:

Roads in Sittingbourne and Milton

GAZE HILL AVENUE HErom-the boundary-of 1924-Gaze Hill Acventesouth-for -

(1) On the eastern side from a point in line with the boundary
of 7/9 Gaze Hill Avenue for a distance of 6.6 metres in a
northerly direction.

(2) On the western side, across the frontage of 1/2 Exchange
Court.

SHORTLANDS ROAD otepenthe Boptaen of LI Dol Sond
(21) Across the frontage of 45 Shortlands Road
(32) Across the frontage of 124 Shortlands Road
(3) Across the frontage of 46 Shortlands Road

Page 42



2 No. OBJECTIONS RECEIVED - PROPOSED DISABLED PERSONS PARKING BAY
OUTSIDE 30 CHURCH ROAD, EASTCHURCH

Roads on the Isle of Sheppey

CHURCH ROAD

EASTCHURCH

On the west side
(a) across the frontage of 32 Church Road
(b) across the frontage of 30 Church Road

HOLMSIDE AVENUE

MINSTER

(1) On the south western side, across the frontage of
62 Holmside Avenue

(2) On the south western side, across the frontage of
32 Holmside Avenue

ESPLANADE

SHEERNESS

At the front of Sheerness Swimming Pool, on the
easterly side of the turning head

GALWAY ROAD

SHEERNESS

On the north eastern side, across the frontage of 42
Galway Road.

The following shall be deleted from the Seventh Schedule [Parking Places for Disabled Persons

Vehicles]:

Roads in Faversham

ATHELSTAN FAVERSHAM Across the frontage of 120 Athelstan Road

ROAD

EDITH ROAD FAVERSHAM from a point in line with the eastern boundary of 1
Edith Road for a distance of 6.6 metres in a westerly
direction.

WEST STREET FAVERSHAM Across the frontage of 25 West Street

Roads in Sittingbourne and Milton

GOODNESTONE ROAD

(1) Across the frontage of 35 Goodnestone Road.

THOMAS ROAD

From the boundary of 13/15 Thomas Road, west for a distance
of 6.6 metres.

Page 43




Given under the Seal of the Kent County Council

This xx day of xxxxx, 2016

THE COMMON SEAL OF THE
KENT COUNTY COUNCIL was
hereunto affixed in the

presence of:-

Authorised Signatory

Page 44



OBJECTION 1

. HIGHSTED ROAD
SITTINGBOURNE
KENT

ME10/

30% January 2016
Swale Borough Council
Swale House

East Street

SITT

KENT

MEI10 3117

For the attention of The Engineering Team
Leisure & Technical Services

Dear Sir

AMENDMENT 17 ORDER 2016 GRAYSHOTT CLOSE

ANNEX B

I have just read your Notice regarding parking restrictions being extended in Grayshott Close I dont
have any issues around extending the restrictions but I dont understand why you are confining it to
Grayshott Close. The whole area needs to be reviewed. Highsted Road is a major access road into
Sittingbourne and yet nothing is done. There is no pavement at the junction of Highsted Road and

Brenchley Road and because of this school children and mums have to walk in the road.

The parking is unbelievable because of the twd schools and the doctors and the hospital and there are
times when residents are unable to get on or off their drives because of inconsiderate drivers its about
time something is done about it because if they build the 540 houses in Swanstree Avenue it will make

matters even worse.

Please dont say the congestion reduces traffic speed, because it doesnt and there needs to be three

accidents before you do anything.

Page 45




OBJECTION 2 ANNEX B

Farm Crescent
Sittingbourne
Kent
ME10

8" February 2016

Engineering Team |
Leisure and Technical Services
Council Offices -
Swale House

East Street

Sittingbourne

Kent, ME10 3HT

Dear Sir

Waiting Restrictions and Street Pérking Places (Amendment
No. 17) Order 2016 |

| take this opportunity of objecting to the advertised order parts (c)
and (d) where the Order refers to parking restrictions in Grayshott
Close and Highsted Road.

My grounds for objection are based on the fact that | have serious
reservations about this parking proposal and the potential for just
pushing the problem “up the road” and creating parking and safety
issues that do not currently exist.

| share the frustration with many of the homeowners in close
proximity to the school and hospital. Indeed | often hear of
problems with homeowners who cannot get out of their driveways
due fo visitors parking opposite or across their driveway. Should
the refuse lorry or an emergency vehicle need to travel up / down
Highsted Road everything stops!

| am somewhat surprised that any proposals do not extend to other
streets in the area where residents may need to use Highsted Rd.
The parking is used, as you know, t0 top up operational parking for
the hospital and school where the sites themselves do not have
available land to achieve their desired capacity in spaces for
customers. We already have a sub standard junction at Farm

Page 46



OBJECTION 2 ANNEX B

Crescent / Highsted Road. Additional trip generation from parking
and poor visibility, could further compromise safety at this location.
Parking on the bend just east of Farm Crescent now appears to be
preferred by some motorists who just abandon their cars
anywhere.

I would urge you to examine an overview of hospital / school
parking with a view to considering a strategy that will not simply
push the problem up the road. .-

[ trust you will look at and review any measures. for consideration
to the benefit of all of us around the Highsted Rd area who need to
move toward / from Bell Road.

| do hope we can all find a way forward that offers reasonable
solution or compromise for us all.

Many thanks

Page 47




Mot b OBJECTION 3 ANNEX B

Engineering Team, Leisure & Technical Services,
Coungcil Offices,

Swale House,

East Strest,

Sittingbourne, Kent,

ME10 3HT

Dear Sir,
| have the following comment on the proposal to enhance the yellow lines in Grayshott Close.

There is a serious problem of parking in both Grayshett Close and Highsted Road. This results mainly from vehicles of
people attending the local schools and the Memorial Hospital. It is often very difficult to travel along the north end of
Highsted Road, because cars are parked on both sides of the road, leaving a single narrow lane in the middle of the
road, not sufficient for the two way traffic which uses the road. If there is a large vehicle, such as a waste disposal
vehicle, it is gridlock. o

if parking shifts from Grayshott close, then it will move into Highsted Road. The only way that extra parking can be
accommodated is for it to move further along the road, round the band by the entrance to Farm Crescent, and beyond.

The entrance to Farm Crescent Is a dangerous one. When approaching from the South to turn into Farm Crescent, it is
difficult to be sure that there is nothing coming towards you round the bend. Many times | have been turning right and
have had to make an emergency stop.

If parking develops on that bend, or closer to Farm Crescent, then the area will become a death trap. If parking is
further restricted in Grayshott Close, then it needs to be done in conjunction with new parking restrictions on the
bend in Highsted Road and at the junction with Farm Crescent. -

Beyond the Farm Crescent entrance, there is no footpath along Highsted Road. If there is parking along that stretch,
then the busy pedestrian traffic thare will be put at risk.

Any additicnal parking restrictions in Grayshott Ciose must be done in conjunction with new restrictions in the areas |
have outlined.

Yours faithfully,

Page 48




“t-.+  OBJECTION 4 | ANNEX B

i
!
i
{

1
i
1

' Eastchurch

Isle of Sheppey
Kent
|
To the Engineering Team, |
| have just noticed a sign on the lamp pc:ost‘i requesting any

abjections for any further restrictions to parking or added bays down Church Road.
As a resident of the above address, | would like to point out the following -

s We already have two disability parking bays, one of which is very oversizer%':

e The bays are used by those who are supposed to benefit it, by parking two cars in one bay,
covering the fire hydrant.

e The bays are abused by the said recipients, by over lapping at each end of the bay when they
park twa cars, ensuring the whole front of their house is kept too their selves.

» The recipients of the one bay has 3 vehicles that utilise that one parking space.

» The gentlemen resident has become confrontational,! .
and threatening to take legal action at various times.

& The path in Church Road only runs the recipients side of the road.

e The hins are on our frontage.

s Dismounting from vehicles into the main road.

e On our stretch of road, there are 11 viable parking spaces, with 8 houses.

e  Four cars used by number 30 alone., '

¢ Walks his dog for long distances.

s 1also have a disability.

| object on the following grounds to anyrhore disability spaces or restrictions thereof.

» One evening the fire brigade had to knock at No.30 as one of their cars was covering the fire
hydrant, thus leading to a severe breach of H&S to the residents. This wiil be documented by
the Fire Brigade as it caused disruption and stress to us neighbours.

e The residents park without due care and attention to any emergency services and their duty
to protect life or as a civil neighbour,

» The residents of No.30, | only know the man’s first name as ‘Bobbv’. becomes abusive and
threatening ~

The council when | questioned them about the parking space originally, stated that if
there was nowhere else to park, as a resident of Church Road, | could parkin that disabled
spate. This should have been made clear to the recipient to avoid confrontation and
misunderstanding, of which | clarified to him.

» They rotate parking, two main cars and also two other cars within the one space. So that his
argument, of nobody should park within the disabled bay, which should only apply to the
badge holder, he does not uphold himself.

» We have only one pedestrian path on the recipient’s side of the road to utiiise, to ensure
safe dismounting from our vehicles.

Page 49




e

OBJECTION 4 ANNEX B

do my visitors and so cannot safely dismount as we have no path unless we dismount the
vehicle onto the main road. Again, causing a breach to our/their safety.

1
i have witnessed 4 vehicles used and parked by No.30. Three of them are more frequent and
park there daily. We have 8 houses and only 11 viable spaces, at least 3 if not 4 vehicles
utilised by No.30. How can you justify two spaces used by four vehicles at one small
bungalow, supposedly resided in by two people to take priority over others?
| have witnessed both residents, walking their dog for long periods of time and also long
distances. | ask you to consider for this reason alone, the justification of them,1 having a
blue badge and 2, having to park directly outside their house. '
.| am in fact disabled myself, but because | haven't
applied for a blue badge, does not make me any less deserving. | wonder if the validity of the
blue badge, has been reviewed for the recipient and if not, would request it to be so.
Forthwith. | was advised by the recipient to apply for a badge, but choose not to use every
toal available to take advantage of systems in place. 3

[ would like to invite yau' to visit me, so you can see for yourselves the already restricted
parking and encumbrances we have to endure daily.

Regards,

Page 50




OBJECTION 5 ANNEX B

‘i Eastchurch

Isle of Sheppey
Kent
1
29/01/16
To the Engineering Team,
| have just noticed a sign on the lamp post ' ,requesting any

objections for any further restrictions to parking or added bays down Ch urch Road.
As a resigent of the above address, | would like to paint out the following —

| object on the following grounds to anymore disability spaces or restrictions thereof in my stretch of
road. '

¢ The residents at no 30 park without due care and attention to any emergency services and
their duty to protect life, covering the fire hydrant.

¢  The council when I questionad them about the parking space coriginally, stated that if there
was nowhere else to park, as a resident of Church Road, | could park in that disabled space.
This should have been made clear to the recipient to avoid confrontation and
misunderstanding. :

s We have only one pedestrian path on the recipient’s side of the road to utilise, to ensure
safe dismounting from our vehicies. |
50 cannot safely dismount as we have no path unless we dismount the vehicle onto the main
road. Causing a breach to our/their safety.

s We have 9 houses and only 12 viable spaces, at least 3 if not 4 vehicles are utilised by
Mo.20. How can you justify two spaces used by four vehicles at one smali pungalow,
supposedty resided in by two people to take priority over others?

s | have witnessed both residents, walking their dog for long perieds of time and for long
distances. | cannot for this reason sea how you can justify any further restrictions and
cannot see how you can aliow further concessions.

s \Wa were of the undarstanding when the last disabled space was put in of which there are
already two, that the road could not sustain any further spaces or further restriction that
would cause unreasenable hardship for other residents some of whom are elderly, disabled
ar have young children.

Page 51




OBJECTION 5 ANNEX B

I would like to invite you to visit me, specifically after 5pm to see for yourself how difficult it already
is to park 50 you can see for yourselves the already restricted parking and encumbrances we have to
endure daily.

Page 52




Agenda Item 9

SWALE JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD

Meeting Date Monday 7" March 2016

Report Title Fairview Road Area, Sittingbourne — Parking Review
Cabinet Member Clir David Simmons

SMT Lead Dave Thomas

Head of Service Dave Thomas

Lead Officer Mike Knowles (SBC)

Classification Open

Recommendations | Members are asked to note the contents of this report
and recommend that:-

e A Residents Parking Scheme is not
implemented in the Fairview Road area due to
the percentages of support received

o Officers continue to liaise with Kent Fire and
Rescue and carry out further consultation with
residents in the vicinity of any subsequent
proposed restrictions in Fairview Road

o Officers report the comments around
enforcement to the Parking Enforcement Team
to ensure resource is committed when required

Purpose of Report and Executive Summary

1.1 Following the initial report to the Joint Transportation Board back in December 2015,
this report provides a more detailed analysis of the recent informal consultation with
residents and property owners in the Fairview Road, Lavender Court, Aubretia Walk,
Heather Close and East Street areas of Sittingbourne.

2 Background
2.1 A petition containing 45 signatures was presented to the Swale Joint Transportation
Board at the September 2015 meeting. Mr Lynch, a resident from the area who

presented the petition, stated that he considered that parking in this area caused
health and safety issues, and access for emergency vehicles was difficult.

3 Issue for Decision

Page 53



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Following the petition, an informal consultation leaflet was prepared and sent out to
properties in and around the Fairview Road Area. A copy of the leaflet can be found
in Annex A, and a plan showing the distribution area of the leaflets can be found in
Annex B. The closing date for responses was 20" November 2015.

A total of 151 leaflets were hand delivered to properties within the consultation area,
and a total of 46 responses were received, providing a response rate of 30%. Two of
the responses did not provide a location so have been omitted from the results.

A summary of the responses from each road is detailed below, and further more
detailed information on the responses can be found in Annex C.

Aubretia Walk

Of the 12 leaflets delivered to properties in Aubretia Walk, 5 responses were
received giving a 42% response rate. Of these responses, 3 felt a Residents Parking
Scheme would improve the parking situation. Based on the number of properties,
this represents 25% of households supporting such a scheme.

Two of the responses reported problems with parking during the daytime, 1 at
weekends and 1 at all times. One response stated there were no existing parking
problems.

Fairview Road

Of the 28 leaflets delivered to properties in Fairview Road, 16 responses were
received giving a 57% response rate. Of these responses, none of these residents
felt that a Residents Parking Scheme would improve the parking situation, even
though 12 of the responses all stated that parking problems occurred during the
daytime only.

Heather Close

Of the 19 leaflets delivered to properties in Heather Close, 9 responses were
received giving a 47% response rate. Of these responses, 5 felt that a Residents
Parking Scheme would improve the parking situation, and 3 felt it would not. Based
on the number of properties, this represents 26% of households supporting such a
scheme.

Three of the responses reported problems with parking during the daytime, 4
reported problems at all times and one stated there were no existing parking
problems.

Lavender Court

Of the 22 leaflets delivered to properties in Lavender Court, 10 responses were
received giving a 45% response rate. Of these responses, 8 felt that a Residents
Parking Scheme would improve the parking situation, and 2 felt it would not. Based

Page 54



on the number of properties, this represents 36% of households supporting such a
scheme.

3.10 There were mixed views on when parking problems occur, with 1 response stating
daytime only, 1 stating weekends only, 5 stating daytime and weekends, and 1
stating there are parking problems at all times. One response stated there were no
existing parking problems.

3.11 East Street
Of the 70 leaflets delivered to properties in East Street, 4 responses were received
giving a 6% response rate. Of these responses, 1 response felt that a Residents
Parking Scheme would improve the parking situation, and 2 felt it would not. Based
on the number of properties, this represents 1% of households supporting such a
scheme.

3.12 One response stated that parking problems are experienced during the daytime and
one response stated problems occurred during the daytime and at weekends.

3.13 Annex C shows some of the typical responses received from each road. These
comments provide further information on the views of residents, including the
perceived problems and suggested solutions.

4 Summary

4.1 A plan showing the existing parking restrictions in the area can be found in Annex D.
There are existing double yellow lines on the east side of the s-bend in Fairview
Road, around the t junction of Fairview Road and along the south side of Fairview
Road between the t junction and Lavender Court.

4.2  The width of the carriageway at the eastern end of Fairview Road, between Empire
Court and Lavender Court, is not sufficient to allow the installation of parking bays,
and therefore the formalisation of parking in Fairview Road would result in the loss
of approximately 10 on street parking spaces.

4.3 Consideration could be given to extending the existing double yellow lines in
Fairview Road from the t junction, west to the junction of Heather Close. However,
this will result in the loss of approximately 6 on street parking spaces, and as no
particular access problems along this section of road have been reported by Kent
Fire and Rescue it is suggested that the area remains unchanged.

4.4 A site survey carried out on a Thursday morning at 9:35am revealed that the
Fairview Road area was heavily parked with vehicles, but that none of these
vehicles were parked on the double yellow lines, suggesting that any parking
contraventions occur in the evening. Our Parking Enforcement Team will be made
aware of the comments from the consultation to commit additional resources in the
area if required.

Page 55



4.5

Out of the 46 responses received, 17 supported a Residents Parking Scheme and 7
felt such a scheme would not help. As a percentage of households, 25% were in
favour of a Residents Parking Scheme in Aubretia Walk, 26% in Heather Close,
36% in Lavender Court and 1% in East Street. There was no support for the
introduction of a Scheme from residents of Fairview Road.

5 Recommendation
5.1 Members are asked to note the results of the consultation and recommend that:
e A Residents Parking Scheme is not implemented in the Fairview Road area due to
the percentages of support received
e Officers continue to liaise with Kent Fire and Rescue and carry out further
consultation with residents in the vicinity of any subsequent proposed restrictions in
Fairview Road
o Officers report the comments around enforcement to the Parking Enforcement Team
to ensure resource is committed when required
6 Implications
Issue Implications
Corporate Plan Improving Community Safety through safer Highways.
Financial, Costs associated with any Traffic Regulation Order and installation
Resource and of additional lining on site.
Property
Legal and None at this stage.
Statutory
Crime and None at this stage.
Disorder

Risk Management | None identified at this stage.
and Health and

Safety

Equality and None identified at this stage.
Diversity

Sustainability None identified at this stage.

Page 56



7.1

8.1

Appendices

Annex A — Copy of Consultation Leaflet

Annex B — Plan of Distribution Area

Annex C — Detailed Responses to Consultation
Annex D — Plan of Existing Parking Restrictions

Background Papers

None

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Business Reply
Licence Number

RTJT-RZTJ-KYZK

e

ehll

Seafront and Engineering Manager
Swale Borough Council

Swale House

Sittingbourne
ME10 3HT

&) Swale

e BOROUGH COUNCIL
Making Swale a beflter place

Fairview Road Area, Sittingbourne
Parking Consultation

Following receipt of a petition from residents, the Borough Council is
undertaking a review of the on strest parking restrictions in the Fairview
Road, Lavender Court and Heather Close areas of Sittingbourne.

The first stage of this review is to seek the views of residentscand
property owners. This will give us a clearer picture of any USU_mBWM\oc
are experiencing with parking within your area. >

. ©
We need to make the best of what we have, and your mxvmzm:@a of /
parking within the area is very important in allowing us to develop
potential options to improve the management of the on street parking. It
is therefore very important that we gather as much information as
possible.

To allow us to compile all of the responses, please could you return the
completed form by Friday 20™ November 2015. You can also complete
the form on line on our website at www.swale.gov.uk/parking-consultation/

Thank you for taking the time
to complete the questionnaire



Questionnaire . Responses — please write your road name below and tick/circle your
- answers to the questions on the left. Please detach this side and post
back to us — no stamp required

What is the name of your road? ...............................................................................................

We need to know how many vehicles you have in your household so
that we can gauge the level of demand in your road. How many : 1 L] 2 I 3 U 4+ [
vehicles do you have in your household? :

Are there any parking problems in your road, and if so when do these : Daytime Evenings/Ovemight Weekends No
occur? (you may circle more than one answer) : _
If you consider there is a parking problem in your road, would you say Commuters/Visitors Residents Other (please specify)
it is caused by commuters or visitors to the town centre or is it simply :
too many residents competing for a small amount of SPACE? & ...

Based on the Frequently Asked Questions below, do you feel that a Yes [ No L1
Residents’ Parking Scheme would help with parking in your road? :

o

O

: O

Do you have off-street parking? :  Yes 1 No [] w
: o

Are there any other comments you would like to make? :

Frequently Asked Questions :

Q Wil a Residents’ Parking Scheme improve parking overnight and at 5w "= = = s s e e
weekends? :

A No, the purpese of a Residents’ Parking Scheme is to control parking ................................................................................................
by non residents and would only operate during the working day. :

Q  How much will permits cost and how many parmits will be allowed per
property?

A Permits currently cost £40 per year, and two permits are allowed per
property. Each permit can have two vehicles on it, but can only be used
for one vehicle at a time.

How would visitors 1o residents be able to park in the road? :
Non-permit holders would be allowed to park for 2 or 4 hours during the :
day, depending on the restrictions applying. Residents can also buy :

%

>0

‘day tickets’ for visitors {o use.



Annex B

Consultation Area — Fairview Road Parking Review, Sittingbourne




This page is intentionally left blank



Fairview Road Area Parking Review — Summary of Typical Comments and Responses

ANNEX C

Road Comments Response
AUBRETIA WALK Remove some of the kerbing on north side of Fairview Funding would need to be sourced for any works, and require
Road to provide additional parking and charge for consent of KCC Highways. Would need to determine whether
permits land is Public Highway. Also many vehicle accesses off of
Fairview Road which would need to remain clear
Not prepared to pay for parking outside my own Introduction of Residents Parking Scheme would require
property, parking is not a major issue and permits would | majority support from residents, and would be subject to
not work around here permit charges as in other areas
Cars and lorries park on pavement and double yellow Comments around parking on existing waiting restrictions
lines causing me to have to go on the road to get by will be passed to Parking Enforcement Team. Particular
issues of obstruction caused by vehicles parking on footway
o should be reported to the Police
QD
«Q Section of Fairview Road from Chilton Avenue to t- Some corner protection measures in the form of double
@ junction is inaccessible to large vehicles including yellow lines have previously been introduced along this
8 emergency services. Needs double yellow lines down one | section of Fairview Road, including double yellow lines on

side

one side where the road bends. There needs to be a balance
on the amount of restrictions introduced against the needs
of residents to park on-street

Time limit for visitors to the estate. Suggest small section
of road set aside for doctors surgery on a short stay basis
at rear of surgery

Any time limited restrictions would apply to both residents
and visitors and may not receive a high level of support from
residents. A minimum carriageway width of 5.8 metres would
be required to install parking bays allowing clearance for
emergency vehicles




Fairview Road Area Parking Review — Summary of Typical Comments and Responses

ANNEX C

Road Comments Response
EAST STREET The people parking to the rear are all people coming into | Council employees are given permits to park in some SBC car
town to work and want to avoid parking for parking, to parks but as these can be a substantial distance from the
be fair these are predominately Council employees Council Offices, for example Cockleshell Walk Car Park, some
employees will park in surrounding roads. The Council does
not have any powers to control where staff park, and with
limited staff parking there are no closer options
| have to park at the rear of my shop. We have 3 cars Any Residents Parking Scheme would allow for a maximum of
approximately. Most cars that park there are Council 2 cars to be parked from each property at a given time.
cars. What you have got to understand is where do shop | Specific staff permits are required to park in the East Street
keepers park? The car park in East Street which is for Council car park and only a limited number of permits are
Council workers is always empty, doesn't that say issued by the Parking Section
;DU something?
Q
v The Chestnut Surgery has 7 off road parking spaces, As above, a Permit Scheme would only allow a maximum of 2
g however we have a further 10 staff here at any one time | cars for each property, which would not help staff at the

and need to park at the rear of the surgery in Fairview
Road. Also many of our patients need to park in the rear
as the parking restriction of 20 minutes on East Street is
not long enough for the average appointment

surgery. Limited waiting bays have been suggested for the
rear of the surgery, but these would need to be in excess of
the 20 minute limit in East Street to assist patients. As stated
above, a minimum carriageway width of 5.8 metres would be
required to install parking bays

FAIRVIEW ROAD

The problem has unavoidably been exacerbated during
daylight hours by the ongoing building works, but | do
feel residents permits are the way forward

Situation should improve on completion of building works.
Residents Permit Scheme would require majority support
from households and will reduce on-street parking capacity
due to the minimum road widths required to install parking
bays

Fire engines, delivery vehicles, refuse collections cannot
get down road. Cars have been damaged by heavy lorries

Kent Fire and Rescue have reported that at times they
experience difficulties negotiating parked cars on the s-bend
in Fairview Road, and we are currently in discussion with
them on possibly installing a short section of additional
double yellow lines




Fairview Road Area Parking Review — Summary of Typical Comments and Responses

ANNEX C

Road

Comments

Response

FAIRVIEW ROAD

Despite there being yellow lines in certain areas, people
still park on them as there seems to be a lack of policing.
We oppose the introduction of permits

Comments around enforcement of existing restrictions will
be reported to the Parking Operations Team with a view to
increasing enforcement in the area

Double yellow lines in the area, cars still park over them.
We do not want parking permits, it will not help the
situation

As above

G9 abed

What guarantee do permit holders have to get a parking
space beside their house? How is this going to be
policed? Non-permit parking 2 to 4 hours is very obscure.
Most of SBC workers are flexi, it will still be congested.
SBC workers have badges on their windscreens. Will that
allow them to park anywhere without restrictions? If so
then this is a complete waste of time

A Residents Parking Scheme cannot guarantee that permit
holders will be able to park outside of their properties, or
indeed within the permit area, it merely limits the amount of
time non-permit holders can park during the scheme
operating times. Any scheme would be policed by Swale's
Parking Enforcement Officers. The exact details of the
amount of time non-permit holders could park would be
confirmed through further consultation if majority support
was received. SBC employees have permits to park in
specified car parks, this would not make them exempt from
the restrictions in a Residents Parking Scheme

| haven't a car but drivers of large vehicles are always
knocking on my door asking if | know who a car belongs
to as they can't get through

We are currently in discussion with Kent Fire and Rescue over
any possible amendments to existing double yellow lines

When Planning Permission for more flats is granted |
don't consider enough residential parking for occupants
is provided.

Planning consent does follow Government guidelines for off-
street parking provision but in many cases new
developments invariably leads to an increase in on-street
parking.




Fairview Road Area Parking Review — Summary of Typical Comments and Responses

ANNEX C

Road Comments Response
FAIRVIEW ROAD 8 | Off street parking no longer size for modern cars. We Suggest that consideration is made to applying for Disabled
regularly need disabled access to vehicle at front of Persons Parking Bay
house, but can't get vehicle close enough. Non residents
use most of the available places. Continuous building of
flats on East Street adds to problem. Council workers
park here
9 | Several vehicles have been damaged due to so many Comments suggest that there is a regular turnover of parked
large vehicles going to building works. Cars park here vehicles as well as all day parking. Residents Parking Scheme
whether it's 2 hours or all day. As soon as a car leaves a would not prevent shorter term parking by non residents.
space another one fills it. If double yellow lines went all Double yellow lines down one side of the road would
down one side of road it would prevent vehicle damage improve access but as stated would also create more parking
;DU and provide safer access but would create more parking problems as on street parking capacity would be greatly
L% problems. No magic solution reduced
8 10 | Fairview Road, Heather Close and Lavender Court should | Residents Parking Schemes carry an annual charge for
be for residents only but not with residents parking parking permits to provide increased revenue to cover the
scheme charges required level of enforcement of such a scheme
HEATHER CLOSE 1 | I'workin ****** (East Street business) and find I've As previously stated, there is nothing the Council can do to
nowhere to park in the week. Saturdays there are many regulate where their staff park and any allocated parking can
parking spaces which I'm sorry to say means the spaces be a considerable distance from Swale House
are being taken up by Council workers. People who live
and work in East Street/Fairview is where we have to
park, not Council workers
2 | Cars are being parked behind other cars in the cul-de-sac, | Any issues with parked vehicles causing obstruction should

blocking cars from getting out

be reported to the Police




Fairview Road Area Parking Review — Summary of Typical Comments and Responses

Road

Comments

Response

HEATHER CLOSE

| do not agree with residents paying to park in their own
road. Also had there not been so many flats built in
Fairview Road the parking might not be so bad

As above regarding necessity to charge for Residents Permits
and also minimum off-street parking requirements for new
developments

Garage too small for vehicle. Being nearest free parking
to the High Street and new properties built in and behind
East Street, we feel that a Residents Parking Scheme is
now essential.

Majority support from residents would be required to
implement Residents Parking Scheme

| do question why some vehicles with SBC parking display
have to park in this close. If | do have a parking permit
will be they be regularly checked and endorsed correctly?

As above regarding proximity of available allocated parking
for SBC staff. Any Residents Parking Scheme would be
enforced

/9 abed

Issues around losing space when dropping children to
school and space being taken up with mainly Council
workers. Have to carry children from Chilton Avenue
after picking them up from school. Do not mind public
parking out on the road too much, it's when they park in
our cul-de-sac that really annoys me. What would help
also in our cul-de-sac would be painted parking spaces as
a lot of the visitors, commuters and Council staff park in
the middle of 2 potential spaces meaning less people can
park in our cul-de-sac

As cul-de-sac is part of the Public Highway spaces are not
reserved for householders. Will investigate possible marking
of parking spaces, subject to funding, although in some cases
the marking of bays can reduce available parking due to need
to mark a minimum space width. Any bays marked would be
advisory only and would be unenforceable

Unable to park between 9am and 5.50pm, if use car for
any trip often unable to move car in day as blocked in, 6
people parking in middle of road

Any vehicles parked in such a way as to cause an obstruction
should be reported to the Police




Fairview Road Area Parking Review — Summary of Typical Comments and Responses

Road Comments Response

LAVENDER COURT When you have workers at Swale House who have As previously stated, there is nothing the Council can do to
parking permits for town car parks displayed on their regulate where their staff park and any allocated parking can
windscreen who decide to park in Fairview Road, this be a considerable distance from Swale House
then has a knock on effect for residents in this area, but
as Fairview Road is nearer than Cockleshell Walk and St.
Michaels car park is closer then why issue them with
permits. Sort your staff out please. There is always at
least 4-6 cars most days of the week here
As the problem is during the day | don't see that permit The introduction of a Residents Parking Scheme would not
parking will help. Doctor's staff use the court as a car help solve the problem of short term parking as non-permit
park and visitors to the doctor's and Aldi's park holders would still be able to park for a certain amount of
constantly all day time as the resident states

QkJJ No problem overnight and weekends lots of spaces. Comments noted

(@) Daytime even more space to park so no need for

® residents parking scheme. Today Friday 16 cars parked 5

% spaces left at 1pm

At 9am it’s like Piccadilly with commuters trying to find a
space. | wonder if emergency vehicles could get through?
People that live in East Street and further afield also park
here for days on end. Permits please

As stated previously, we are in discussion with Kent Fire and
Rescue regarding any issues with access

| do not have a car but do have a blue badge and rely on
family visiting on a daily basis. What happens in this
situation

Generally, during the hours of a Residents Parking Scheme
visitors would only be allowed to park for a limited time
unless they purchase visitor permits. Blue badge holders are
entitled to park on waiting restrictions for up to 3 hours as
long as they do not cause an obstruction

Parking is also an issue at daytime weekends, during
these times | try to avoid moving the car and going out as
| know I'll have nowhere to park when | get back

Residents Parking Schemes can be effective during their
operating periods but the scheme does not operate on
Sundays so would not assist then




ANNEX D

PLAN OF EXISTING DOUBLE YELLOW LINES — FAIRVIEW ROAD AREA




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 10

SWALE JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD

Meeting Date Monday 7" March 2016

Report Title Informal Consultation on Proposed Waiting
Restrictions

Cabinet Member Clir David Simmons

SMT Lead Dave Thomas

Head of Service Dave Thomas

Lead Officer Mike Knowles (SBC)

Classification Open

Recommendations | Members are asked to consider the results of the
recent informal consultations for waiting restrictions
and recommend that Officers:-

o Take the comments from the consultation back
to the Swale Quality Bus Partnership for further
discussion prior to implementing restrictions in
Wildish Road, Faversham.

e Progress the proposed restrictions in The
Street/Canterbury Road in Boughton-under-
Blean and Dunkirk, but with the amendments
suggested by Kent County Council and subject
to the agreement of both Parish Councils who
are funding the works.

Purpose of Report and Executive Summary

1.1 This report provides a summary of informal consultation results with residents and
statutory consultees on proposals to install waiting restrictions in Wildish Road,
Faversham and The Street/Canterbury Road in Boughton-under-Blean and Dunkirk.

2 Background

2.1 Arequest has been received from the Stagecoach Bus Company for a bus stand to
be installed in Wildish Road, Faversham, with double yellow lines opposite the bus
stand. A request has also been received from both Boughton-under-Blean and
Dunkirk Parish Council for double yellow lines to be installed along The
Street/Canterbury Road between the junctions of Staplestreet Road and Horselees
Road.

2.2 A copy of the consultation material for the proposals can be found in Annex A.

Page 71



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Issue for Decision

Details of the consultation results can be found in Annex B. For the Wildish Road
proposals, an additional 4 responses were received from residents not within the
consultation area, and for the Canterbury Road/The Street proposals an additional
54 responses were received from residents outside of the consultation area,
following the delivery of additional leaflets by the Parish Councils. In both cases, the
additional responses have been kept separate from the main consultation results.

Wildish Road, Faversham — Bus Stand and Double Yellow Lines

Following a request from the Stagecoach Bus Company through the Swale Quality
Bus Partnership, a consultation took place with residents on proposals to install a
bus stand to the south of the Ivory Close junction in Wildish Road, Faversham, with
double yellow lines to be installed on the opposite side of the road. Problems have
been reported with vehicles parked opposite the existing bus stop, resulting in the
road becoming blocked to through traffic when buses are stationary at the bus stop.

The Wildish Road bus stop is a timing/layover point for some bus services, and
would therefore need to be marked as a bus stand as opposed to a bus stop, to
allow buses to wait for several minutes at the stop.

Of the 9 properties consulted, 5 responses were received, 3 supporting the
proposals and 2 objecting. An additional 4 responses from outside of the
consultation area were received, all supporting the proposals.

One objector states that on a daily basis up to 3 buses are parked at the bus stop
for several minutes at a time from 7.08am with their engines running, creating a
public noise nuisance and environmental health issue. It is also stated that these
parked buses cause an obstruction to the Ivory Close junction sightline. The other
objector states that double yellow lines will affect all road users and visitors to the
play area who will have to park elsewhere, and suggests that the parking issue is
caused by visitors to the nearby community centre, who should be forced to expand
their car park or ensure that their patrons use the agreed facilities of Sainsbury’s car
park.

Canterbury Road/The Street, Boughton-under-Blean/Dunkirk — Proposed Double
Yellow Lines

A request was received from Boughton-under-Blean and Dunkirk Parish Council for
double yellow lines to be installed on both sides of Canterbury Road/The Street
between the junctions of Staplestreet Road and Horselees Road. The issue had
previously been discussed on site with Parish Councillors and Kent County Council
Officers, and KCC advised that they would not consider the installation of the
restrictions as there is no history of personal injury crashes at the location.

The Parish Councils therefore approached Swale Borough Council with the request
for waiting restrictions, with both Parish Councils agreeing to jointly fund the

Page 72



3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

scheme. It has been reported that vehicles parked between the two junctions are
obstructing the sightlines of vehicles using the Staplestreet Road and Horselees
Road junctions.

Of the 28 properties consulted, 19 responses were received, 11 supporting the
proposals and 8 objecting. An additional 54 responses were received from outside
of the consultation area, following the distribution of leaflets by the Parish Councils.
41 of these responses supported the proposals and 13 objected.

Many of the additional responses supporting the proposals came from residents who
use the Staplestreet Road junction, although it is acknowledged that waiting
restrictions would not impact on them directly as they do not park in the area.

Some of the objections received state that visitors to nearby properties rely on the
on-street parking at this location, and any restrictions would force vehicles to park
further down The Street in areas which are already congested with parking.
Comments have also been received that the parked vehicles create a traffic calming
effect resulting in the reduction in speed of vehicles entering The Street. Other
objectors have stated that with insufficient off-street parking, they have been in
communication with the local PCSO and have fully complied with the requests
around parking a safe distance from junctions. Concern has also been expressed
that introducing waiting restrictions will displace parked vehicles into nearby areas,
including some private accesses, which could obstruct emergency vehicle access.

Kent County Council have responded to the consultation, stating that they consider
that a shorter section of double yellow lines would be appropriate on the north side
of Canterbury Road, running easterly from the junction of Staplestreet Road for a
distance of 20 metres. This would still provide adequate visibility for vehicles exiting
Staplestreet Road whilst allowing a level of on-street parking for residents. The
County Council also state that vehicles parking east of the Staplestreet Road
junction will, in themselves, create a traffic calming measure by providing a clearly
visible presence that will naturally slow oncoming vehicles traffic from the Boughton
Hill direction, and that this, coupled with the planned speed limit reduction on
Canterbury Road, will significantly improve road safety in this vicinity.

As the planned restrictions are being proposed and funded by Boughton-under-
Blean and Dunkirk Parish Council, agreement on any amendments to the scheme
would be sought from the Parish Councils prior to implementing the necessary
Traffic Regulation Order.

Page 73



4 Recommendation

4.1 Members are asked to consider the results of the recent informal consultations for
waiting restrictions and recommend that Officers:-

4.1.1 Take the comments from the consultation back to the Swale Quality Bus
Partnership for further discussion prior to implementing restrictions in Wildish
Road, Faversham.

4.1.2 Progress the proposed restrictions in The Street/Canterbury Road in
Boughton-under-Blean and Dunkirk, but with the amendments suggested by
Kent County Council and subject to the agreement of both Parish Councils
who are funding the works.

5 Implications

Issue Implications

Corporate Plan Improving Community Safety through safer Highways.
Financial, Costs associated with Traffic Regulation Order, and necessary
Resource and lining and signing.

Property

Legal and Traffic Regulation Orders to be sealed by Kent County Council.
Statutory

Crime and None at this stage.

Disorder

Risk Management | None identified at this stage.
and Health and

Safety

Equality and None identified at this stage.
Diversity

Sustainability None identified at this stage.

5 Appendices

5.1  The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the
report:-

e Annex A — Copy of Consultation Material
e Annex B — Results of Consultations

Page 74



6 Background Papers

6.1 None

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX A

QSwaIe

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Proposed Double Yellow Lines & Bus Stand
Wildish Road, Faversham

A request has been received from the Stagecoach Bus Company for a small section of double
yellow lining to be installed in Wildish Road, Faversham, opposite the bus stop near Ivory Close,
as shown on the plan overleaf.

The proposed restrictions are to tackle problems with vehicles parking opposite the bus stop,
resulting in the road becoming obstructed when buses are present at the stop, regularly for
periods of several minutes. As well as the installation of double yellow lines, the proposals include
the marking of a Bus Stand at the location of the bus stop.

| would be most grateful to receive your views as to whether you would support or object to the
proposals, so that this feedback can be reported back to the Joint Transportation Board for further
consideration. Please note that direct, individual responses will not be sent out in response to
each questionnaire. At the end of the consultation a report on feedback will be compiled and this
will be available on request.

Please complete the reply slip below and return to Swale Borough Council En%ineering Services,
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent ME10 3HT before Friday 5™ February 2016.
Alternatively you can e-mail your comments to us at engineers@swale.gov.uk

A space has also been provided to allow you to add any further comments you may have.

Proposed Double Yellow Lines & Bus Stand — Wildish Road, Faversham

Please tick one of the following boxes

| Support the proposal to install double | Object to the proposal
yellow lines and a Bus Stand

Name & Address Comments

The information supplied will only be used in conjunction with this proposal, and used for geographical analysis
purposes only

Page 77



Swale

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Plan of Proposed Double Yellow Lines and Bus Stand

PROPOSED DOUBLE
YELLOWLINES

PROPOSED
BUS STAND

Page 78



ANNEX A

eSwaIe

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Proposed Double Yellow Lines
The Street/Canterbury Road Area, Boughton/Dunkirk

A request has been received from Dunkirk and Boughton-under-Blean Parish Councils for a
section of double yellow lines to be installed along The Street, Boughton-under-Blean and
Canterbury Road in Dunkirk, and into Horselees Road all as shown on the plan overleaf.

The proposed restrictions are to tackle reported problems with vehicles parking in the vicinity of
the junctions of Staplestreet Road and Horselees Road, and | understand this issue has previously
been brought to the attention of the local PCSO and Kent County Council. The Parish Councils
have stated that they have received many complaints from residents who are concerned that the
frequently parked vehicles are causing a safety issue for both road users and pedestrians.

| would be most grateful to receive your views as to whether you would support or object to the
proposals, so that this feedback can be reported back to the Joint Transportation Board for further
consideration. Please note that direct, individual responses will not be sent out in response to
each questionnaire. At the end of the consultation a report on feedback will be compiled and this
will be available on request.

Please complete the reply slip below and return to Swale Borough Council En%ineering Services,
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent ME10 3HT before Friday 5™ February 2016.
Alternatively you can e-mail your comments to us at engineers@swale.gov.uk

A space has also been provided to allow you to add any further comments you may have.
Proposed Double Yellow Lines — The Street/Canterbury Road Area, Boughton/Dunkirk

Please tick one of the following boxes

| Support the proposal to install double | Object to the proposal
yellow lines
Name & Address Comments

The information supplied will only be used in conjunction with this proposal, and used for geographical analysis
purposes only

Page 79



Swale

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Plan of Proposed Double Yellow Lines

Orchard
Bungalow

- STAPL E
{ e STREE
e TRo4
— D

R =-~-.PROPOSED DOUBLE
n - YELLOW LINES _

PROPOSED DOUBLE
YELLOW LINES ‘Y

Page 80



[lell-8 &8s - SIUSWLUOD SNOLIBA

Ll

‘PEOY $99]9SJ0H OUl JBYLN) Saul|

posodold sy} Buipusixs O1Ul UOHEISPISUOS JC) YSE PiNoM pue (/ ON 8pIsino) asnoy sy a)soddo payied
St 9I2IYSA B I 9ALP JO 1noyul 185 0) noiip os|y “Ajeleudolddeul Bunped siepiing sjeispisuooul Jusaaid
pinom saujy os ‘esnoy Aw sysoddo pueA siaping 1e uswdojsnsp Buipusdwll ‘0s)y “ssUl] MOlBA s|gnop
SWOD[PM PINOM 0S SJe2 payJled O] anp 9)99.115/S99[9SI0H UojouN| 18 JuUspiode Jeau e pasusliadxs aneH

ol

"JBUI0 AUB UBL) 8J0W pPa)od)e
Apoaaip st ie|4 A luaweaed o pue uo jjey yed Ajjebaj sjey Jno wodl swos ‘ejdoad ssopybnou|

peoy 19anseidelg Jo JIXo Jeau payied ale Sied usym Sassill Jesu AUew USss AR |

a19y3 Fupjled
2Je 1994159|de1S WIBJ) SISP[ING 3Y1 95nedaq Aj91e| 95J0M U3 SeY 1 "LSIA A3yl usym Ajitue) AW 32USIAUOIUL |[IAN

[lEW-3 335 - SlUawWwod Auep|

<

‘uaddey o1 Suryiem 1uspiooe Jolew vy '218
solw Sum 89 paaindd0 aAeY SJUBPIIDE JOUIW [BLIASS DS ||EH SUBWPOOAM padojaaap Ajjuadad sy} jo sjuapisal
0} BuiBuojaq sied pay.ed 03 anp pnopiezey Ajdenailied si Aingaajue) spiemosl peoy 19341s9|dels wouy Suilixg

Page 81

llIBW-3 335 - SJUBLWIW0d Auey

‘peOoJ 10 Yo13431s snola3uep siy3 uo

Buiwied o1ges] JO WJCY WS ppe 01 ASUOW JO 3sh J2119q PUE JB1BS Yonw 3¢ pinom 11 aA12|aq | 'uoos Alaa Aljiele)
40 Aunfuy ue o1 peaj |[im 1 uoiysnog Sulaiua ydw gy 1o spaads Sulyoead s3[2IYaA YUAA "23E||IA Y] SULIDIUD UBYMm
paads 419y} 25E342Ul UleSE 20UO PINOM SIED 1BY] PBUISIUOCT A|]2WBIIXE 3¢ PINOM | PapPEe 3¢ 01 2UaM S3UJ| Mo]|2A
3|qnop J| ~a8e||ia syl Suiaea| pue 3ulIalud Saed Jo spaads i ell wied o) pad|ay AjjualaApeu; aaey sied payed
S ‘Paysiui} DABY 21B1S2 MIU Y1 UO SUPMOM 2i9M 1BY] SIBP[ING Yl mou Ajjerdadsa pauwij sl juoly ayt 1e payJed
SJed jo Junowe ay| "Suppied 399115 uo yum palsssuod Apeauje s yoiym s3ejia 3yl umop J1aynng Supped aq pjnom
SJOUSIA sueaw uondo ue se siy) Suiroway yied AJ|RUOISEDII0 0] BIJE UE SE 193115 YL 95N 3snoy Jno 01 SI0HSIA

SIUSWWCD

192lq0

uoddng

asuodsay

SaUl'] MOJJeA 9[qnoQ pasodold - yInjung 'peoy AINgJojuey

g XINNV



Mpjung pue uoyybnog ybnouyy e puip ydwpg ay) Buipuaixe eale peads

Jomo| e Jo 1ed awooadg pinoo peod sy} J0 ‘pauciisodal 1o psaowial oq pjnod Asy | -Buisniuog Auejnsied
ale peoy 19aqsodeig Ul subis uonaussal-sp Wi paads ay| "19a4iS ayl Yim suonoun] peoy jesaliseldels
pue peoy se3|asioH 8y} Jo) swe)sAs Juswabeuew oyjel) Jaad pinoys | ‘suonaisal Bupled uey)
Jsyiey i peoy Aingusjueny/iH voiybnog uoc Buwies siyel) pascdold ay) 0} peusddey 1eypn “pesiwoud
Se pajeisulal 89 p|inNoys Jueinelsay Alig(] 8yl Jeau peel oy} uo sBupyew peod liwi peads ey} ‘1ses| Alsa
BU) 1Y 'pesnpoJiul ale ssul| moj|oA s|ignop i Apenoiued ‘iwi peeds Bunsixe sy) Bulonpal JapISUCD 0] NOA
)se osje | ¢seawl yead-jo Buunp paxejal aq pjnod Asy) aqhew ‘pasodwll ale suonousal Bupued §| "elsy
sued o} sapIysA 10w Joadxs ued am ‘papinold Ajusppns si Bupjied peol-}Jo ssojun 0g "spuswdojsasp
9SNOH JCUBN PO SUL PUB ||BH SUBLWIPOOAA e Buisnoy mau pescdolad pue jusoad sy 40 saoeds

Bupied ajenbapeul ale 2oy eale ay] JO |99} |BINi-IWSSs 3y} 0] [BJUSWILISP 8q pInom Ayl Uiyl | Mdiung
pue uoyybnog jo eale peoy AINgIoiuen)/19841S oy Ul saull mo(|ok ajgnop pasodoid ay) o} 10alqo |

g¢

alUI] @J0J8q J0U

9z

€ ol

G

pecy Seo|esioH / apiSino yled 0] SISAlp obeinoous

1M S18UMSS|3 S8UI| MOJ|SA S|gnop au) Jo UoIIONPOJiUl 8Y) 12Y] |93 SAA'PEOJ SU] JO UOIID9S MOLIBU SH)

U] SALIP INo BuISSe008 SN 0} 9PBISCO UB SWI029q PiNOM PEOY SO9|0SI0H / apisino payled sieo ‘|esodoid
JUBLIND B} JBPUM "JUSLUNDOP PSysene By} Ul usalb ul paleoipul SB PEOY S99[8SI0H / SpISIN0 uonoos
8U) 9pNIOUI 0S| 0] PEPUSIXS PEOY SSS(SSIOH Ul SBUl MO||BA SIGNOP Ul Y| PINoMm dpn ‘fesodoad auy o)
JUBWpUBLIE JaYyUN} & 8X)ew 0] 81| PINOM 8M JoASMOY ‘Saul| MOJjoA ajgnop Jo uche|eisul oY) Loddns e

9l

18]19] 985 - 0}@ 'JUssu00 bujuue|d punoie sanss|

Sl

¥l

[IeLU-8 255 - SJUSLULIOD SNOUEBA

el

lell-2 295 - SJUSWUWOD sSNolleA

<l

SJUSLULIOD

109(q0

1oddng

asuodsay

SauUl] MOJ[OA 9|gqnoQ pesodoid - yipung Peoy AINgIajue))

9 X3INNV



Lev
6'.G
6°L9

103040 %
woddng o
osuodsey 94

B
Ll
6l
8¢

199{q0 oN

uoddng "oN
pauinial "ON
pajnsuoy satadold

Ll

210l

Jayio yoes ajsoddo aie g pue ¢ JO SaAlp 8y} a1aym Julod 8y O] f PUE / SE [[oM SB PeOY S83[esIOH

6 JOgqUINU JO 1UOJ) 8] $SOIDE papuUalXe ag Sall| 8|gnop 8y} 1By} pIES SABY PINCYS | ‘[lew Jussal Aw 0}
Jayun4 "paiapIsuod aq o) seap) Aw 1o} 8le| 00] Jou s| } adoy | ‘uieby ‘Aemabelued ay) |je sey Jeo a|buls
e jey) os Aem aalf Ing ‘esay ssed Ajael suonoalip susoddo ul BulalLp sieo omi ‘si 1l sy “Buissed swejgoud
aney sapiyaa sbiel usy) ‘peod auy) ul Ajsapus yied Aayj JI 1o saeyo ysnd pue [gsym 1o} snolebuep

Alleal 31 sayew yoiym ‘uswsaed ay) uo Alled yied Asy) usyo ‘alsy yied seop BulyAue J| "Apeale op
uey) eaie siy} ul yued o) buiob aie sidoad siow ‘ascdoid NnoA se saulp MO|[2A 9|GNOP ULAA "PEOJ JO Udlas
mouteu Alea e s SIyl 1Bl SI sIyl Jo) uosead sy saob dew unoA uey) Jaylng s e 1snl splom isylo

ul - seipadold g 9sey) Jo saaup ay) Buipnoul Jo pue 0} dn ‘||om se asnoy Aw 0] susoddo pue ‘Aledoud
Aw jo Alepunoq juol) sy apnjoul 0} Jayling a1l B S8Ui| MO[|2A 8y} ALIED PINom | pespul - Il paquosap
aaBy NoA se swayns ay) woddns Ajnuesy |'Jjem Asa eale sIU] 1o swa|qold syl mouy aigjalall pue

‘PEOY SOD[9SIOH JB OAl| | PRJSPISU0D 9q O] smala AW 10) 8le| 00 10U sI U adoy [ "paulnial | usym sians)
INoA punoy Ajuo pue yjuow e Joj Aepljoy uo useq aaey | ing ‘Buld|del Jo) sujpesp IncA 1o jou aARy

| ¥eyy Aos we [yupung/uolybnog ‘peoy sas[esioy ‘18841g auy) Ul saull moj|aA ajgnop pasodoud ay) al

A%

P_w—%

Page 83

SJUSLILIOYD

polqo

1oddng

asuodsay

Soul] MO[[9A 9[qnoQg posodolid - Jnjung 'peoy Angiojuen

a XINNY



‘Y 2y1 umop awo3s Aayy uaym | paads ayl
01 Suidaay 10U aJe sJe3 Jo S10] Se snoJaSuep AjawWwaJlixa Sl Siyl [934 | "dols sng 2y Jesu s1ed payJded syl 013np ||y
243 umop Suiwios 31jes) 8Y} 935 03 3{gIssodwl s) 1 pue 19315 3y, 01U 1n0 |Ind 01 sARY pue 35017 ySia|uiad ul aall |

9v

SvY

-1981359|de1s Jo 1o (nd 01 snouaBuep 1 ayew alsyl payted saed ay] saul| moj|3A ajgnop ayl Hoddns §

144

-ade|pa 2yl 121U Ayl se ywi| uaads ydw gg ay1 aJoudl uayo pue isey Aisnouaduep

1114 9Y1 UMOp 3WOD SIBALIP SWOS "Paads JO U0 51 BNS5SEISYLI0 3Y1 "JUIPIIDE SNOLIDS e ag 01 A|ayt] SI 818yl 18y}
s11eap Ay "siea payed jo aul| B 03 anp ‘aas 0] a|qe uaaq 1ou aaey A3yl yoiym oijell Sujioduc Jo yled ayy ojul
‘peoJ DY} JO 2pIs puey Y8 pue 3|ppPIW 3Y1 01U] pP2J0) BJE peoYy 1924153|de1s 10 1IN0 Bujwod siaalp ‘Aunguaiue)
JO uonnaip ayl w1 08 6} 3| UIN] 0} J13PJ0 U] "pa1aLIIsal Aaa 1saq 1e 1o ‘paydo|q sI (paads 1e usyo) [jiH uolysnog
umop 3uwod SJed Suiioauo Jo AH|IqIsia 3yl Wuswdo|aaap jjeH s,uewWpoopn 2yl ausoddo payJed aJe sied usym
pue uonaunl peoy 1a2as3jdels ayy asn Ajluanbaly | ‘suonoun| syl punoie suoseat Alajes o) poddns Aj3uoais

A

o

Page 84

[lBW-2 235 - S1U=aWWO2 snoldep

‘|lesodoid ajqisuas pue 1ua|[20Xa UL aq 0} SIU1 BAIB|BY

[ "uoIldaNp Anglajue) ay} woiy Sutwod si aiger) Aue j1 3as 0} ajgissoduw 31 Sup ew 1aa11sadels Jo J3ulo3 sz 01
dn 3y8u yaed 21doad ‘sucnranp yloq ul Sulo8 sws|qosd 0 10| B 3ARY S3SNG S3IPIS Y10 payJed Si JL4RI1 USYAA "IN0
Yoiul 01 aABY pUB JE3|D 51 pROJ 3Y1 JI 935S 10uued noA |4 uoiydnog dn 3uied apis puey 1aj 2yl uo payled aie sied
3yl usym 1eauisaldels ul moje3ung Al WO IN0 BW0I 01 BARY | “Saul| Mo||2A 5jgnop syl Sulaey 01 aaJde A|e101 |

I

SJUBWILLIOD

19190

woddng

asuodsay

TIDNNOD HSIHVd A9 1NO LN3S S13714V31 TYNOLLIQAGY OL SISNOJdSTY

SaUl] MO[[OA o[qno(Q posodold - Jinjung 'peoy Angiojuen

g XaNNV



‘lem se saieb syl Ag yied sied se ‘pieyolo sy} olul Buipes) seleb sy} Aq peoy josuissidels
oul Buiuiny JauIoo U} U0 papusiXs WYl 89S 0] &Y PINom pue saul| mo||eA pasodoud sy} ypum sa16e |

9lY

"85I0M SJ9]JBLU SYBeW AjUC |IM NOA alay] weay) bupeld

Aq pue Buip|ing ayj Jeau yied 0} }NoIIp SI ) "e1ay] saul mo|aA s|gnop jo jesodoud sy 0} 10alqo ABuosns

| pue Buipjing Jey) w Jaqusw Ajiwe) e Jisia Aenfal [ 496 €13 USH weysisae ues|g Iepun uoybnog
18811S 8] ||BH SUBLUPOOAA Jesu Speeol syl Uuo saul mojeA eoejd 0] Buisodoud aue noA Jey) puelsiapun |

SILY

‘sysoddo paddojs sey snq e usym snolabuep
Al|eloadse s)j pue peOJ 8y} %20|q 18U} SJed payied ajenobau 0} peslo) usaq SABY SUOISEI30 AuBW UOC pue

YLV

Ainguayues o) Buisarl) usym jeaiiselde)g wol) uonuni ay) esn USO pue Jaulod o) punole jsnl aAl app

£LY

(434

"Ajlep 3JoMm 0] 8)nod SIY) 9Sn PUE YInunQ ‘8solD
Aojoylag ul aall | 'shosabuep st |iH uciybnog jJo wonoq sy je Bupped sieo’ yym ualjen)is Jusund ay |

LY

"951N00 O Ja]Jew B Se pamo||e a4 Jou pinoys sdojs snd Jo AHUIDIA 8U) Ul
sles Jo Bunjied "uonoun( sy je payed ale sied usym paloulsal A|a1anas sl }eaig syl pue [jIH uojybnog
OJUD peoy Jeansse|delg Jo 1no Buiuin) suybis sy se |esodoud sacge sy) oddns o] Buum we |

Olv

T3

5

‘lew-8 89S - SJUSLWOD SNOUBA

BY

"19a0s9|dels Jo 1o Bulwiod
sjuspiooe ¢ pey Aliesu saey | "piezey e usaq sey il J|IH uoyybnog uo wonoq sy) uo paxied aAry sieo
22UIS pue siesh gg 10] 8s0|D As|eyiag Ul PaAl BABY | "Saull MO[|eA a[gnop jjelsul 0} [esodoud sy} woddns |

S3UI MOJ|9A BY1 4O} 1SNW B 11 J9PISUOD pue Ajjeuosiad S9$51W JEDU [RIDADS PASSOUNM BABY | “LIX3 0} a)es

st 11 uaym a3pnl 01 YNl H puly pEO. 559]9510Y 104y SUILIXD S3[21YaA 0S|y 'ssed 01 WO JUBDIYNSUI SI 3uay1 1Byl
duisiess usym dols 01 3|qeun SIed Yylum Sassiw Jeau Auew Suisned s|ge|IeAe S1 YIpIm $9[01Yaa auo Ajuo (uoialip
weysianey ul) apsoddo paddois s1sng e usym oSy "peod Jaa1s2|dels 8unixa uo swagqosd |ensia uisned peod
19a1159|de1s pue dois snqg 3yl usamiaq yJed s3)2IYaA SE 1SN e 34k |1y uoiyBnoq uo saul| moy9A pasodoud ayl

FAY

SJUSUUWQD

12ldo

yoddng

asuodsay

TIONNOID HSIYVd A9 LNO LN3S S13T4VI T IVNOILLIAAY O.L SASNOJSEY

SoUl] MO||9A o[qno( posodold - yanjung ‘peoy Aingisjien

8 X3NNV



alaymAlaAs paf|elsul 8q O] Saui] MOj|SA 8|qnop 1o} apew aq [m sisanbal Ajjenjusas L A
pue speol Buunoqybiau Jsyjo uosul Buiied abeinoous [Im SIYL USY] pafjElsul 818 Saul| MO|19A aiqnop Ji
} LY
! 02v/
-Jea)o 1dey aqg o) sey )| ‘Bunied sasng om) oyl yum |esodosd 8|qISUSS AJBA L m_&fo
*AJUno9 auUl Wi sajoyjod L 8lvh,
snoJawnu ayl Buixiy uo juads Jajaq &g pinod ASUCW 8L} SASIISQ |'SSUI| MO||@A a|gnop aq pinoys Aunod D)
a1 Ul aisymiusns usy) sieo payled JoO asneosaq snss) Al1ojes B sem sIaly) J'A[sles speol syy Bunebiaeu nm
ur swejqoid Aue saey 0] 194 SABY pUE 91NWILIOD Allep B UQ PBOJ 8} 8SN pPUE MOU SIedh G 10| eale
ayl Jo AJIIUIDIA BY] Ui PBAI| BABY | BaJE BAOJE B 0} SauUI| MO|[8A 9jgnop Jo uoiielelsul sy} asoddo 0} Ysim |
"BalE 1BU] Ul SaUl| moj|ak signop ay) jo Bunuied pesodeoud sy 01 pejoalqo | 1eyr o) uo aoe|d 0} 8y l LY
pInom | "sw Jo] piey aq pnom uswdinbs Buiues|o pue lsaocy e BuiAuen “Asng Apesy|e s1 yoiym abe|ia
aYl Ul Jaylng yied 0] saey pinom | SB a4y UBSC 0] sNUNUCO 0} sl 10} pael U 8yBL [Im 11 Juswdinbe umo
Aw oye) | sy '19aa1g syl Buole yied o) saey pue -1 S)e|d [|EH SUBLUPCOAA JO SE8JE |BUNWILIOD Sy} UEs|D
| "lIBH SuBwWpoops punode aoepd urind aq [im suoiollsal Bunjied jey; sieme spew uaaq Ajjuadal oA |
SJUDWILLIOD 123lgD woddng asuodsoy

TIONNOD HSIHYd A9 1NO 1N3S S13714v31 TYNOILLIAAY Ol SASNOdSdd

SoUl] MO[[oA 9Iqno( pesodoid - }DUng ‘pPeocy Aingiajuen

g XaNNV



‘lIeH SUBLUPOOAA 10 Slell a4} jo (J|osA se uyons)
sIOUsIA 10} Buied aies Aeme o).} pnom JI ‘eale Jejnopied SiU} 0) PaoNpoJiUL aJam Saul| MOJ|SA S|gnop J|

FXA 4

‘dese uo pajoe aq [[im }senbal

siy1 BuidoH "1no Buynd sesng pue suelsapad ‘SISALIP 101 pJezey Jayjoue 194 aJe (|Iy dU) JO Wojog au}
1e paxed aJe 1BU] SODIYaA 8L ‘[[IY SU} UMOP BALIP 1B} SB[0IUSA U} JO aWos Jo paads ay] yim Ajjeoadss
peoy $89|9510H pue Jealnss|dels wolj Ino Buind usym aied BJjxXse spasu jey) eale e uaag sAemie s)|
"BAJE SIY} Ul paxied SS|21YsA JO JUNOWE BU] JB S} SWO0S Jo) PaUISIU0D U9ag aABY OS|B am sueljsepad
pUE SIBALIP SY "SiesA Qg I8A0 10) Yiung mou Ajjusdsl pue uojybnog Jo sjuspisel usaq aAey 9\

9cv

Gev

"1n0 bulnd alojeq malA poob e
106 o) YnaIip S1 Y| suea/sied AuBwl 8l 818U} J] “AINQUBjUED) 0} J3| WiN} pue peoy leassside)s Wwol) awod |

A

"abe||IA ay} ojul doeq paads ybiy Jo uinjal ay} as 1snl ||Im suo|e saul| MO|[BA

‘swiejgqoid yjog Apwswad [im sIy g |y syl dn Buios sied oy Ajuoud Buialf ubis moue pal pue syym e
UNm 218y pue|si Ue axew Jo paads ybiy Je abejia a4} Iy Jouued SS[DIUSA Jey) Os {|iy 8y} jo wollog oy} Je
sdwng uswsaoijod Buidasgs swos Ind noA jey) 1sabbns | Aew eale siy) Ul saul mojaA Juied op nok J| Bunyy
poob e sI 198} | yoiym 1 umop swo Aay} usym mo|s Jo [jiy sy} dn o6 0] Jilem 0] aAeY Asy] SB Wal] Juem
AJuo saull mojjaA ay Juem noA ajdoad 1ey |99] | “AemAue seul] mau ay] JO BpIs Jayue yJed AJuo |jIIm mou
aioy} payied eode Jey) S4e0 8U) pue eale |eluepisal ay) Bunly speeds snotsbuep yons Jo winjal ay; aes
M NoA BaJe siy) Ul saul mojjaf uied noA J| “Asles sgjdoad o) piebal ou yum abe|IA oY) olul pue ||iy 18yl
umop possads Jabuo| ou ued suQ "JBJES Y2anw! S| SIY} 98] | pue SIeD 8581} PUNOIE JUSLUSACLU MO|[B 0} UMOP
MO]S 0} aAey ||IY 8y} umop BulAlIp S8iojUyaA peOL 8U) JO 9pIs duUo uo Yled sied 1ey) MoN "i1se) Alaa abe||Ia
ay1 ol Buiybneold pue sdojs sng pue suonounl sy 1sed Buizziypa ~snossbuep Alen sem 1 pue siy) Buiop
saolyen mes uslo | "abg|Ia 243 o1l Jwi peads oy Bulioubl Ajje101 ‘paads ybiy 18 abe(a ay) oJUl jaARN
0} pasn |jIH uoybnog umop Builioo oyjel; atay) paxded SIed OU USYAA "49JeS BUE SIU] opew aABY Asy)
(zv pIo auy) |IIH uolybnog jo wonog ay) e eale sy} Ul Bupied ussq saey s|21Ya0 8Y) 82UIS 18Y]) |99] |

A

Page 87

S)USLUWOY)

12lq0

uoddng

asuodsay

TIONNOID HSIHVA A" LNO INAS S131d4VET1 TYNOILIAAY O1 SSSNOdSEY

SOl MO[[OA o|qnoQg pasodold - yanjung 'peoy ANgiojuen

g X3INNY



‘AdeinBal uospuels Jay Usia
0] 8|ge &g 0} aiay] Jied o] spasu 1ey) Joyiow pajqesip Alleplie ue aaey | se |esodeld sy 0} Bunoalgo we |

eV

‘Kingiajuen splemo} Buluiny ‘peoy jealiso|dels buixse sopIysA 1o}
pue peol syl Buissoo usIp|iyo [ooyos Joj Algejou ‘suelsepad pue siasn peod Jayjo o} Jabuep e Buisod
ale AJuIoIA sy ul payled sie) “saul mo||aAk sjgnop e1sul 01 [esodoid sy poddns AiBuolys 0] Buipum we |

LEV

'88900Y pue bupjied

JO afepoys ApeaJz uB 9]BgIa3BXS 0] 1991)S 8y} umop Jayun) aghep ¢aoeid ul ind sem siy) Ji yed sio)isiA
pinom alayps "suonolsal Bupiied uonippe Aue pasoduwl Jsasu pue Buiuueld ay) pajuelb Aay) aioeq Ajny
1uswdojaasp siY) jo sjesodoid ay) paJepIsSuos ains WE | I2UN0D Sy "ues|g Japun uoiybnog jeens syl
pue peoy $98|9si0H Jo uonounl 8y 18 saul mojjaA jo uonsabbns sy) 0} uonoslgo Aw payoseje pulj eses|d

oev

P_w—_N

“uonounl ay] Jeau paxted aq 0] sIBD 10} 2.l S|} SB PEOY S09|9SI0H Ul SoUl| J|ejsul 0] Alessaosuun
Alleroadss 11 july) pue peoy $99|9SICH Jo Juapisal e we | abejpa ay) jo Hed siyj ul snonibuodul

)O0| PINOM $BUI| MOJ|2A BjgNop SE sWRYS B JI Uiyl | "pamo||e jou si Bused jey) Bunels sBeubis aghew
- @AlleUIS)R UR 8q pINoYs aJay) pue Ajsielapisuosul Bunjied sjuapisal jo Ajlouil e jsnl si 1 ‘uolybnog
Ul pOY S99|9SI0H pUR 19241G B} Uo $aUl mofjah ajgnop Jo uoliejeisul Jo jesodoud ay) 0 108(qo |

62V

Page 88

"Aluie] Al BURISIA LUO) SIBUI0 puiR JIRSA 1211531 pinom
1l se saul| mo|jeA pesodold ay] 01 10a[go 0] 8ABY piNoMm | 1BY] NOA WIoju 0] pasu oy} |99} | Algjeunpoiun
‘ueajg-lepun-uoiybnog 194 oy uo Buisodoad aie noA suonouysal Bupied sy o} prebaa u|

:TAS

SJU2ULIOD

199lq0

Yoddng

asuodsay

TIONNOD HSIHVA A9 1NO LN3S S13714V3T TVYNOLLIAAY O1 S3ISNOdSTY

Saul] MO[[SA 9|qno(g pesodold - jJijung '‘peocy Alngiajue)

g XINNV



‘|lEH SUBLIPOOM 1B DAl oym AJILUe) AL JISIA O} JNSUIP JI 9YEW PINom 8s3y [

Gev

JleH SUBLIPOOAA Ul ®Al oym Ajiwe; Aw Bupisia 1011S8) pjnom siy] Jaucisuad e sy

eV

[Seul| 8saU} pasu A||eas em ‘asea|d 9A0W 0} LWIBU] ¥SE puB Siapiing
aU) 0} siA & Aed 0} pey odosd [B20} 8y} pue ABp JBU} S||jed pauIaouog 1o S1of paAledal Apealle pey Aoy
1IN0 suin} )| "892110d 8y}l pajjes | ‘uaip|iyo AW siom SB ‘USXBYS 0S SBM | "SBLUI} ¢ SSIW JeaU e pey Aleloy|

pue no |Ind o) paydwasye | ‘dojs snq ayj 0} Wb Jaulod ay) wouy ‘slay) Buoje payled [je pey Josloid
88NoY Jouew sy} Wolj sisp|ing sy} usym Aep suQ siewjybiu [eal e ue si Yyojal)s siyl ybu uiny Aples o}
WiooJ aaey ) uop usyo | sieo peyled ay} axeusac 0} unbaq Apeae aaey | eouo uonounl ey) suiol Jeo e ]
Py ssejestoy ojul JybBu winy 0} Jdwslie pue way} puncle ne Ind 0] 8ABY | Py ssaejesloy aysoddo paysed
aJe sled Ing 19941S 8y OJUo Ye| pauin) Ajajes aaey | JI S| ©NSSI JBYJ0 8] "USas aq Jued Asy] sied ay)
ssed 0} pspue}s Apeslje saey Aay) J1 Ing [y ayu3 dn Jybu 88s UBD | |1y @Y} Uo Jods pullq B S8sned )l s1eo
M3} B 91B 218U JI SIU} 0) pSpPY "SOSSIW Jeau AUBW PEY SABY | PUB [NISSaUlS AISA S| SIU] JeD U] Ul usip(iyo
BunoA £ Aw YlIpA “pUllg Ino |Ind 0} 8ABY USHC pue ||e 1B pY $Solosioy Je uonounl sy 3s jou ued | dojs
snq s} a1ojaq isnl paxued aue sieo uaypp “Buljjes o) 06 usy) pue py ssejesJdoy oul Jybu e 9ye) | pue
‘papaau ale saul| 8say) s1aum AjoadIp SI YdIym ‘Ya| uiny usy) | "py 1984saide)s 0Juo Ya| usy) pH samed
0JUO Py ABUOIS JO JNO SWO2 | POSOD SI P Seme( 8U) Sy "Aep AlsAs peol Jo Yyolans sIy) asn § 0s ‘|Iy

ay} Jo doj ey 1e jooyos aid ayj & dn Uos J|ppiw Aw aAey osfe | ‘Buljag Ul jooyos O} UOS }SBpP|S AW aXe)
[ Buluiow Aep yeam Alaas pue py AsU0lg Ul sAl |'plezey s)njosqe ue ale alay) Bunjed sien ~dojs snq
ay) a4ojaq 1snl py sso|asioy alisoddo Ajjeroadss sauy mojeA jo jesodoid ay) woddns Ajiny oy Buijum we |

gev

Page 89

S)USLLLIOY)

109040

Hoddng

asuodsay

TONNOJ HSIHVd A9 LNO LN3S S1314v31 TVNOILIAAY OL SISNOJS3IY

Saul] MOJ|aA a|qnoQ pasadold - YIung 'peoy Angiajuer)

g XINNV



3 LGV
pa1e|duwiod alam sHBUIpjing usym suop Ussg SABY pPINoys L 05y
uonoun! punose A}gjes peod sacidull [jIm saui| MOj[8A L 67V
L 8¥v
M8IA Buunsgo sied payied yum )ndiip Apeale py 19easajdels wWod) uonounp L ¥V
4 oV
L GV
18aU1s 9y 40 [|Iy uolybnog o} Inc Py 19onsejdelg woel) A1es|d 8as 0] Sjgeun L A%
b erv
PSX20|q UOISIA "SNg Yo3ed 0} [|IH MungAssns eyl buissoso ysu 1e uog L crv
HINg ||8H SUBLUROOAA 82UIS LUB|g0Id L L¥Y
peol sy} Buissolo snossbueq "ses|asioHdasalse|delS papesu saul| mojj@k ajgnop L vV
‘papnoul buisq Sem PBOY SO9|9SI0H JO 3|0UM 3L} USIm | I 6V
‘lleH sSuBWPOOAA 8pIsIne dols snqg 8y} 0} sdse)s sy} Wody Ssouo 0) 8de[d sles e SARY b gey
jou op dojs snq ay} 0} Buob ualip|iyD "peoy 19a4)saldels 1o 1IN0 BUILLOOD Uaym UOISIA JILUl| Sied payled
L LEV W
"891j0d |U} Aq 20e|d usye)] aaey iey) suchebnsaaul 1o sbulpul L 9evio
oy} 1deooe 0] ayjeo] S| oym '10[Iounod snung e Aq ubledweo [euosiad e Jo BuiylBWOs aq 0} palussp w
s1 jesodoud siy} 184} SI W 0} UISOUOD B10W 4.} JO "BWO0ISA0 ale INg ‘wajgoid e Jo alow Jej aie abe|jia N
|} ul swe|qo.td Bupped sy} "sied payied Aue axBSAD 0) Wood jo Aluald S| s1ey) pue paliedw Jou S|
Aunqsia pue Jesjo ale suonoun( ay; - e Je swejqold AUe usag Jou aaeY dJoy] 'PBUSIA 8ARY | JBY] sWi} Auy
'dojs snqg ay) Jo saAup Aue X20|q 0] Jou a1ed Jeail aye] sjuspisal pue sIoNsIA “Jo1ybi| sI ouiRl) pue swoy
ale sjuepisal usym Buiusas sy} uj Ajulew si ) 19ansg ayl ul yied 0} Alessessu 810j84ay] S1 ]I pUB SIOJISIA
Joy Bunpied ou sey |jeH SUBWIPOOAA e sjely puiyag Bupped ay) ‘Aj@luniolun "ajgow ssef sn Jo 9soy)
Joy Aljeroadse ‘swsjqoud siow asned Alenjoe pjnom pue AJesaosuun yog are sjesodoud ayj Jey) |99 |
SIUSWILIOD) 102lq0 Hoddng asuodsay

TIONNOD HSIAVd A" LNO LN3S S1374v3T TvNOILIAAY O1 SISNOJSHY

g XaNNV

Saul] MO|[PA 9|qnoq pesodold - JIDun(g ‘peoy AINGI9JUEY



Page 91

£l L [ejol

l rav

ydwge jou pue ydwoy yum uonsunl snoiabuep e i se [esodoud oddns Ajng ] £GY

MaIA Buljoniisqo sied psyied Jo esnesaq snolsbuep Aioa s119811G sy 0] 18a1)ss|dels wol) }ix3 L ZsvY
SJUsLUILUIO) 193[q0 woddng asuodsay

TIONNOD HSIAVA A9 LNO LN3S S1314dV3T 1VYNOILLIAAay OL SISNOdSTY

Saur] MOJ[2A @|gnoQ pesodold - JApjung ‘peocy AIngiajues)

g XaNNV



Dear Sirs

RE: Objection to Proposed Double Yeliow Lines: The Street/Canterbury Road Area, Boughton/Dunkirk

Further to your recent letter which | received at!
formally like to 'object to the proposal’ for a number of reasons.

1.

regarding the proposed yellow lines, | would

[ currently have to park on The Street which has been included in the area to double yellow line. | live with
my partner in a 2 bedroom property and only have one designated space to park in which means that | have
no choice but to park on the road. If the road becomes double yellow lined then | would not he able to park
my car. '

The property was bought because it had plenty of on street parking, therefore, we’re concerried that should
double yellow lines be put in place then this would devalue the property and seems unfair given that we
have begn parking on the road for over a year with no issues.

The road coming from Canterbury/Dunkirk Hill is a 60mph road, which then drops to 40mph as you reach
the junction for Horselees Road, however, cars often do not reduce their speed especially when there are no
cars parked along The Street. When cars are parked on the road then cars do have to slow down which

means that it is much safer especially as the speed should drop to 30mph once past the junction to
Staplestreet Road.

There has not been one reported accident along where the Councillors wish to have double yeliow

lines. The issue is that a number of older people seem to have trouble pulling out of a junction, possible
because they have reduced sight, even though no cars park on the junction side, where cars pull out of
Horselees Road. Furthermore, for people pulling out of Staplestreet road they have no cars park within 20
meters of the junction on ether right/left handside. If they do turn left (where the cars are parked) they
have the advantage of the Dunkirk Hill {Canterbury Road) and can see for % a mile if cars are coming down
or pulling out of Horselees Road. Therefare, it is extremely easy for cars coming out to look up Dunkirk Hill
(to the right} and down The Street (to the left) and have a clear vision.

Boughton-under-Blean village has a number of cars parked along the streets and opposite junctions and the
village is fine with the amount of cars. [t's no different at the top part of the village where the councillors
wish for the double yellow lines, in fact it’s better as the road becomes wider, therefore, if you look you can
see that cars are parked on one side of the street, a bus can stop at the bus stop and a car can still overtake
the bus, wh;'ich could not happen in the main part of the village.

Should the double yellow lines he introduced then you will force cars to park more in the main village
adding to their parking issues.

There is usually no more than 4 cars parked in the evening and 1-2 cars during the day, so it seems silly to
have the expenses and upheaval of double yellow lines for a minority of complaints. Some people think it's
hard pulling out of a junction, but like | say there has not been one accident in the whole time | have been
parking there.

Page 92 @)



Dear Sir/Madam,

I am writing to you to voice my objection to the proposal of double yellow lines outside of my property
] Boughton Under Blean. :

1 feel that there is little to no need for the lines to be placed there, for the following reasons:

» The vast majority of the cars that have been parking there are workmen who have been working on
the building site of The Manor House on Staplestreet just down the road. This building work has -
ceased now and the number of vehicles parked there has returned to minimal amounts.

+ Theroad is wide enough to pass a parked vehicle whilst another vehicle is coming in the opposite
direction, or a bus is parked in the bus stop. This section of the road in question is by far the widest
part of the street, yet cars are allowed to park wherever they want throughout the rest of the village,
even where they are in contradiction of rule 243 of the Highway code. The majority of the village is
forced into single file traffic due to the extent of the parking, and often blocks when the A2 is closed
and lorries come through the village.

» Residents of Woodmans hall use this area, legally and in conjunction with Rule 243 of the Highway
code, and in consultation with the local PCSO, for their parking and their guests. It is other people
(the temporary workforce on the building site) that have ben parking irresponsibly/illegally.

» If' you place these yellow lines, people will park just beyond them up the hill on Canterbury
Road. This will be a much worse parking position as it will force busses out onto the other side of
the road as they are pulling off.

[ feel that the only reason that this is deemed an issue and dangerous is the speed at which people pass my
property along The Street. The hill down Canterbury Road is at national speed limit, and it changes to a 40
Mph zone about 100m before the junction to Horselees Road. ‘This 40Mph zone stretches into the village.

It 1s clear to me that people do not take this 40Mph zone into account, and regularly speed past my property.

Especially as they are doing 60 down the hill. The only reason people slow down into the village is due to
the single file traffic and the parked vehicles.

I personally feel that this is the crux of this matter, this 40 Mph zone should not be there. It should be a 30

Mph, especially if you consider that the two bus stops are used by school ¢hildren who regularly have to
cross the road.

I think that the money and effort spent on the yellow lines would be much more beneficial if it were spent

on speed calming measures as vehicles enter the village and the reduction of the 40Mph zone to 30Mph,
with enforcements,

However, should you feel the need to still place yetlow lines, I urge you to place them only where rule 243
of the Highway Code applies (I.E: Opposite and within 10 metres of the junctions). This will allow the
responsible residents of Woodmans hall still park outside our properties, a luxury seemingly granted to the
rest of Boughton Under Blean.

Page 93



Dear Engineers,

I would like to register my objection to the proposed double yellow lines on The Street / Canterbury Road in
Boughton-Under-Blean for the following reasons:

Restriction of Parking for Residents

The residents of this area of the village, including those in the Woodmans Hall would face a detrimental impact due
to this restriction. Residents and visitors would have to park further into the village where it is already congested, -
some of these visitors are elderly and are unable to walk great distances. It appears-that the residents that live on
the widest part of the road, where cars can easily pass stopped buses and park cars, are being restricted for no good
reason other than a minimal number of complaints to the council from residents of the village that do not live in the
local vicinity. It is hypocritical that Dunkirk are proposing these restrictions yet their village has no such restrictions

on the same width road, opposite or around junctions and bus stops, and are allowed to park their cars where they
please.

Safety

If we exclude the temporary use of this area by the builders of The Orchard development to park due to acts of
vandalism that has been committed to their cars and vans, the (1} cars that park in this area on an overnight basis
acts as a speed calming measure for cars that insist on racing up and down the hill.

In my opinion there is no increased danger to other road users, or pedestrians that use this area than there is at any
other point in the village. In fact, from a risk assessment perspective there is less risk in this area;

1) Astheroad is wider and has less cars parked.
2) Ascars have a clear view both up and down the hill.

3) Cars exiting from Staplestreet have to pull out slowly as the turn is sharp and naturally force you out into
the opposite side of the road.

4) There have been no accidents due to these cars parked there in the 2 years that they have.
5) Crossing points have been designed so that pedestrians have to cross Horseless Road, and then The Street.
These crossing points are never obstructed and are always clearly visible.

pPC50

The wasted visits from the PSCO that you mention in your letter was due to the constant badgering by a parish
councillor who should be focusing on better things. The PSCO met with us to talk about the issue, but was satisfied
that no rules were heing broken, and that the cars are parked perfectly within their rights. The PCSO did however
inform the parish council of their findings and made a request not to be contacted again.

| feel that the parish council are now trying to alter the rules to impose thair will onto the residents that they are
supposed to represent. | would have to question the objectivity of the councit in regard to this matter.

Thank you for registering my objection. | would like to request a copy of the final report mentioned in your letter.

Page 94 m

1 \E__J



Further to the communication I have received about the above I am glad to see that the need for double vellow fines
in this area is finally being considered and I support this proposal, -

I wrote to KCC Highways asking them to consider these back in October 2012 when the parking (on the areas now -
shown requiring double yeliow lines) became problematic as a result of the Woodmans Halt development. Residents
and visitors of this then new development had to start using these roads to park as there was insufficient parking
allowed at the development.

The response to my reguest (Enquiry 49344) is shown in the email below. This response horrified and saddened me -

greatly - to think that injuries would have to be sustained before anything could be done — I would rather have seen
any injuries prevented with the introduction of yellow lines than any potential injuries sustained (or fatalities) — hence
my communication to KCC Highways in 2012,

I definitely agree with the parking restrictions shown and would actually like to see the double fines extended. It's
_near on impossible to see oncoming traffic to the left when I have to exit the track just before No.7 Horselees Road |

due to cars parking outside number 7 Horselees Road - half on this narrow road, half on

the pavement - and with pedestrians advancing on the same side (only pavement on that part of the road).

*Planning permission for whicl was clearly passed with inadequate parking included.

Page 95



Dear:

Thank you for your recent enquiry, requesting double yellow lines in Horselees Road. Kent County
Council (KCC) receives many such requests every year. Due to substantial Government cut backs
in funding, KCC cannot meet this demand from the available budget, and so has to carefully
prioritise which improvements we can deliver and those we just cannot afford.

We will only progress new restrictions in a situation where there have been injury-related crashes
within the last three years, of the type we would be addressing by implementing the works
requested. We have no record of personal injury crashes in the vicinity that could have been
prevented by the presence of parking restrictions, and therefore at this moment in time, we will not
be able to meet your request. | am sorry that this is not the answer you were hoping for. As 1 am"
sure you can appreciate, KCC has 1o be fair and consistent in its approach to these issues across
the County.

f would like to. make you aware of the possibility of applying for a white access highlight marking.
You can find out more via this link:

Page not found - 404 - kent.gov.uk

www kent.gov.uk

Yours sincerely

Traffic Engineer {(Ashford & Swale}

KCC Highways and Transportation

Ashford Highway Depot, Javelin Way, Ashford, Kent, TN24 8AD t

Teal: 08458 24780
www.kent.gov.ulk/highways

Page 96



Dear Sir/Madam

Thank you for your recent letter outlining proposals for possible double yellow lines at the foot of Boughton
Hill and in the region of its junctions with Staplestreet Road and Horselees. Road.

)
We are the house owners of’ :
Our house is; ﬁ in the midst of the area under discussion.

We wish it to be put on record that we oppose the introduction of yellow lines in this area for the
following reasons:

a. The so called 'problem’ raised by local councillors has been excessively overstated.

- due to a large building development in Staplestreet (and the lack of enforcement by Swale Planning
Dept) a number of builders and contractors parked in the affected area across a number of weeks during the
bulk of the building work. At that time councillors quite rightly expressed concerns. However, during the
past 3 weeks, there have been very few (at most 2/3 of these builders) vehicles parked. As the building

development is now nearing completion it would seem both logical and likelv to assume that even this
parkine will soon cease.

- there is one additional vehicle which is frequently parked on this stretch of road, though it is usually
only there at off-peak (out of work) hours - it belongs to a resident of the Woodmans Hall development.
There is insufficient parking available on the Woodmans Hall site (as flagged up to Swale planning at the
time of the original development proposals) and the person in question has explored most of the local
parking options to try and find a solution. In fact it was this person who involved the local PCSO to ask
their advice about safe parking. They subsequently met with myself and local councillors to try and identify
a possible solution to no avail. At this point in time, we are considering a possible arrangement between
ourselves and this resident to supply him with an off road parking solution.

- my own, informal, observations of the parking in this area suggests that the problem (which was there}
has diminished and continues to reduce.

- other areas of this village have considerably greater traffic/parking issues but seem not to draw the
attention of elected representatives.

- there is no long term parking problem/issuc here which necessitates the need or cost of the works being
suggested.

b. Yellow lines around this area will be to the detriment of the rural nature of this part of the village.

¢. Many parents/carers provide brief set-down or collection of their children or family members using the
local bus service and use the post box. This contributes to the total level of community facilities for all
villagers and local people hereabouts. The addition of yellow lines here will contribute to the
degradation and reduced usage of these local facilities (bus service/post box). Furthermore, parents still
wishing to drop or collect family members nearby are more likely to do so in more hazardous spots with

lower visibility thus creating greater danger/risk to themﬁelves and others. Overall, it will have a negative
impact on the community,

: W)



In summary we object to this proposal for yellow lines and strongly advise that it be rejected.

We would appreciate an acknowledgement of this communication and trust that it will be taken into account
within your deliberations.

Yours faithfully

Page 98




Proposed Double Yellow Lines The Street/ Canterbury Road , Boughton

Further to the comments raised by’; to Mike Knowles from the Engineering
Department last week in respect of the inaccuracies depicted in the actual picture of the
affected area, I would raise the following observations;

Where are cars supposed to park AS planning permission is granted for the erection of homes
in this area when the only allocated parking is for 0.7 (planning guidelines ) cars are not of

Lego sized proportions..especially in family homes and it is a proven fact that the majority of
homes have 2+ cars?

This seems a bit like taking action after the horse has bolted.... Instead of trying to impose
restrictions retrospectively AFTER developments have been built how about giving due
consideration to the possible problems BEFORE planning permission is granted?

WHERE would you like cars to park when there are more than 1 per household or

when people are visiting the homes in this area .... Surely this proposal is shifting the
problem rather than dealing with it? -

Swale council have agreed to a development of 5 flats and 4 houses opposite Woodmans
Hall.... This realistically could generate 18 more cars...Wouldn't it be much more realistic to
have 4 houses and a car parking area to accommodate Woodmans Hall and this new

development..... Wouldn't that be a lot more sensible... Or is that too much like common
sense???

I agree that the proposal for Horselees Road makes sense from a safety aspect... But [ don't
see how making it double yellow lines down both sides of the Canterbury Road from the
proposed diagram is realistic or viable... Where do the cars over the 1 car allowance from
the flats and houses fronting Canterbury Road at Woodmans Hall, park?

I have never noticed the arrangements currently in place being abused?...... And would also
add, tongue in cheek, that actually having a couple of cars parked opposite the Bus stop
outside of Woodmans Hall prevents the road from being used as a racing track.. Which it
surely would be with boy racers if there was a clear run!

I have no objections to reasonable houses being built in any suitable area however now the
concrete tubes have been placed incorrectly, too high and not joined together, to enclose the
natural culvert (in the site opposite Woodmans Hall) there is a small pond forming at the
bottom of the plot (I take 1t when the propE%&Q@vQ@pment is built - unless planning is

1




revoked- that pilling will be needed, with big machinery as witnessed over the road in the
Staple street development, being required ?7)

I would also add that at present the dustman cannot safely get a truck down the drive, double
yellow lines may assist with this as it will be a necessity when the other properties are
completed.

I have suggested to Mike that representatives come out here to see the actual issues rather
than guess and send incorrectly addressed information to current home owners.
1 am willing to show you round to see the problems if you have the time?

I can also see, if the double yellow lines are implemented, that it may cause a build up of
vehicles where people do not want to walk too far causing obstructions for emergency
vehicles - however I am sure you have all thought about this and measured road widths on
the adjoining roads. (I would be interested to see this data and a guarantee in writing from
you that this, in the unfortunate event where lives are in danger, assurances can be given that
earliest attendance would not be compromised).

Food for thought and I look forward to meeting you, please feel free to contact me at any
time I have given Mike my contact details. However before a realistic decision can be made
accurate information should be provided.

Page 100

2



oor 1alq0 % |2 108[q0 'oN
009 Woddng o, ig uoddng “opN
fe Wels ssuodssy % (G pauIn}al "oN
6 pa)nsuoy) sauadold

4 £ [0l

paljddns Jajo7 L 9

paddns sojoyd pue Ja)e7 L g

! ¥

} £

G osuodsal jo sjeadng zZ

peoy UsIplIAA ojul Buiuiny ui jnjdjeH } l
SISO 18l00 uoddng asuodsay]

g XaNNV

PUEJS snyg g saul| MOJ|9A ojqno( pasodold - WeYSISeAE] ‘peoy YSIPIIM

Page 101



0 ¥ [BjoL

"$95N( 2Y31 JO 13sn Jen3ay “|esodoud uaj|eaxa L Y

pa|qesip 4o} snoJa8uep si yaiym sied paxed
U2aMI3( $SOJD pUR PEOJ 2Yl 01 UMOP-da3ls pue peod syl JO S|ppIW Byl ul dois 01 sey sng ) L A%}
"gapl poob AISA L v

"‘peol ayy dn bl 0F 0} aAey AaL) SN} S0
“dn yoid 0] s8sNg JO} 9{qILI9] S ) pUE J0| B SN( 1By} U0 WE | "duop ag 0] spaau Ajpeq sy L LY
SIUBWILLIOD 19210 woddng asuodsay

Baly UONE}NSUOS) opISI WO POAISIY S95U00Say

PUEB}S SNg % SoUl] MOJ[@A 9[0NOQ Pasodold - WeySI9AB] ‘PecY USIPIIM

9 X3aNNV

Page 102




¥ BOROUGH COUNCIL

Proposed Double Yellow Lines & Bus Stand
Wildish Road, Faversham

A request has been received from the Stagecoach Bus Company for a small section of double
yellow lining to be installed in Wildish Road, Faversham, opposite the bus stop near Ivory Close,
as shown on the plan overleaf.

The proposed restrictions are to tackle problems with vehicles parking opposite the bus stop,
resulting in the road becoming obstructed when buses are present at the stop, regularly for
periods of several minutes. As well as the installation of double yellow lines, the proposals include
the marking of a Bus Stand at the location of the bus stop.

| would be most grateful to receive your views as to whether you would support or object to the
proposals, so that this feedback can be reported back to the Joint Transportation Board for further
consideration. Please note that direct, individual responses will not be sent out in response to
each questionnaire. At the end of the consultation a report on feedback will be compiled and this
will be available on request.

Please complete the reply slip below and return to Swale Borough Council Engineering Services,
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent ME10 3HT before Friday 5" February 2016.
Alternatively you can e-mail your comments to us at engineers@swale.gov.uk

A space has also been provided to allow you to add any further comments you may have.

Proposed Double Yellow Lines & Bus Stand — Wildish Road, Faversham

Please tick one of the following boxes

| Support the proposal to install double | Object to the proposal
yellow lines and a Bus Stand

Name & Address Comments
(e Objeck Fully TO
4wg Bus Stand AT
WiLpst  £oao, A TS
NILC  [AFLeT ON DUl |
The information supplied will only be used in conjunction with this proposal, and used for geographical analysis

purposes only ﬂ& vﬁ&"ﬂ)
Page 103




PROPOSED DOUBLE
YELLOW LINES

PROPOSED
BUS STAND

e

......

Page 104



Swale Borough Council
Engineering Services
Swale House

East Street
Sittingbourne

Kent

ME1L0 3HT

31st January 2016
Re: Proposed Bus Stand at Wildish Road, Faversham

We as residence of the immediate surrounding area object to the above,
as the proposed restrictions do not tackle the real problems occurring
and only distort them.

The fact is that this small local road is being used on a daily basis by
the Stagecoach Bus Company to park up to three Buses for several
minutes each — causing obstructions and view restrictions for cars
using Ivory Close and Wildish Road.

Photographic evidence enclosed

My understanding of the term Bus Stop is for One Bus to stop,
load and off load passengers and move on.

To have several Buses sitting empty and stationary with engines running
daily from 7.08am outside our houses, is not only a public noise nuisance
but also an environmental health issue.

These issues have been reported to the Stagecoach Bus Company
and related Bus drivers on numerous occasions.

I therefore completely reject their request and

your proposed diagram indicating an expansion

from existing Bus Stop for single bus,

to proposed Bus Stand exceeding the length of 3 Detached Houses.

Page 105










- BOROUGH COUNCIL .

Proposed Double Yellow Lines & Bus Stand
Wildish Road, Faversham

A request has been received from the Stagecoach Bus Company for a small section of double
yellow lining to be installed in Wildish Road, Faversham, opposite the bus stop near Ivory Close,
as shown on the plan overleaf.

The proposed restrictions are to tackle problems with vehicles parking opposite the bus stop,
resulting in the road becoming obstructed when buses are present at the stop, regularly for
periods of several minutes. As well as the installation of double yellow lines, the proposals include
the marking of a Bus Stand at the location of the bus stop.

| would be most grateful fo receive your views as to whether you would support or object to the
proposals, so that this feedback can be reported back to the Joint Transportation Board for further
consideration. Please note that direct, individual responses will not be sent out in response to
each questionnaire. At the end of the consultation a report on feedback will be compiled and this
will be available on request.

Please complete the reply slip below and retum to Swale Borough Council En%neering Services,
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent ME10 3HT before Friday 5" February 2016.
Alternatively you can e-mall your comments fo us at engineers@swale gov.uk

A space has also been provided to allow you to add any further comments you may have.

Proposed Double Yellow Lines & Bus Stand ~ Wildish Road, Faversham

Please tick one of the following boxes

| Support the proposal to install double ><f | Object to the proposal
yellow lines and a Bus Stand

Name & Address Comments
CO g
IV LWkl

|
The information supplied will only be used in conjunction with this proposal, and used for geographical analysis
purposes only

Page 108 | T

.
\'-~..




Friday 5™ February 2016
Good Morning

| just wish to raise an Formal objection to the “Proposed Double Yellow Lines and Bus Stand Wildish Road
Faversham” the area in question has been blighted by inconsiderate people parking who are patrons of the West
Faversham Community Centre and this has occurred on humerous occasions since the opening of new community
centre with insufficient car parking requirements or space allocated for the patrons to park whilst using the centre,
the Local Sainsbury’s opposite have agreed for the centre to use their car park but the patrons choose to parkin
wildish road and restrict access to the road and the residents as well during those times can’t park outside their
own houses.

| would suggest that the Community centre itself engages in a better regime of ensuring that their patrons do park in
Sainsbury’s when the community centre car park is full.

Having double yeliow lines placed opposite the bus stand will affect ordinary people who use the local park and pay
area for their children and would cause them to park elsewhere and the risk to children in this case would increase
and cou'd result in a fatality occurring as a result of Double Yellow lines installed at this location. Another reason for
objection of Double Yeliow Lines would be the policing of them as the council did confirm that their service don’t
come out this far from the town, so people would still part there.

A Bus stand with a box would be good idea in that area on that LHS of the road which would be good to identify the
area for the buses and could be the same in size to the previous bus stop in Bysingwood Road opposite Sainsbury’s
itself but not Double Yellow Lines

We even have patrons that use the centre actually park their cars part on the Path even thou Sainsbury car park in
nearly empty (picture 444 shows this and was taken this week you can see vehicle parked by the Bus stop on the left
and the car in the picture parked on the path, there are worst cases which 1 have other pictures) and this relentlessly
restricts Disabled persons in wheel chairs being unable to get past offending parked vehicles on the path and also
affected Mums with push chairs/Prams and young children who have to negotiate the road itself to get past those
inconsiderate vehicle parkers whom can't be bothered to park elsewhere such as Sainsbury’s. This has been
reported on many occasion to the centre by the resident and me inciuded but they don’t seem to be worried and
has been also reported to the police but they only attend when they have time and when they can spare officers.

The hest option is foir the Community Centre to expand the car park to a sufficient level so that there is engugh
room for the Patrons/Users of the centre to park correctly and in accordance with the use of the building and
without obstructing Wildish Road and those many council tax paying residents of the Ivory Close estate{numbers 1-
47) and off course the local Bus operators.

The council in the opinion of the majority of the ivory Close residents has always appeared to be on the side of the
West Faversham Community Centre, members of the centre are also involved in SBC business and Faversham Town
Council and its running of and this in terms of working relationships between the centre and the council could be
construed as being viewed as a conflict of interest pertaining to issues not being addressed in a correct and efficient

manner. Page 109 P
)












Agenda Item 12

Lower Road / Barton Drive Petition

To: Swale Joint Transportation Board 7t" March 2016

By: James Hammond

Classification: For Information

Summary: Following the receipt of a petition from the ‘Lower Road Campaign Group’ the local

highway authority provides an update concerning proposals for Lower Road/Barton Hill Drive.

The local highway authority’s technical consultant has been progressing a concept design for a new
roundabout at the junction of Lower Road and Barton Hill Drive. Once this exercise has been
completed the scheme will be handed over internally to the Traffic Schemes Team, at which point
consultation with the local community will take place.

Future cycling requirements will be considered so that the design of the junction does not preclude
new facilities at a later stage. Where it makes sense to do so, the local highway authority will seek to
provide footways that are wide enough to accommodate cyclists. The local highway authority will
continue to seek funding streams and opportunities to improve the corridor between Barton Hill
Drive and Cowsted when opportunities arise.

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

To: Swale Joint Transportation Board
By: KCC Highways and Transportation
Date: 7t March 2016

Subject: Highway Works Programme 2014/15
Classification: Information Only

Summary: This report updates Members on the identified schemes approved for construction in 2014/15

1. Introduction

This report provides an update and summarises schemes that have been programmed for delivery in 2014/15.
Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes — see Appendix A

Drainage Repairs & Improvements — see Appendix B

Street Lighting — see Appendix C

Traffic Systems — see Appendix D

Developer Funded Works — see Appendix E

Transportation, PROW and Safety Schemes — see Appendix F

Public Rights of Way — see Appendix G

Bridge Works — see Appendix H

Member Highway Fund - see Appendix |

Conclusion

1. Thisreportis for Members information.

Page 115



Contact Officers:

The following contact officers can be contacted on 03000 418181

Kirstie Williams Highway Manager (Central)

Alan Blackburn Swale District Manager

Alan Casson Resurfacing Manager

Katie Lewis Drainage Manager

Sue Kinsella Street Lighting Manager

Toby Butler Intelligent Transport Systems Manager
Andrew Hutchinson Transportation, PROW and Safety Schemes
Katie Moreton Acting Structures Manager

Page 116



Appendix A — Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes

The delivery of these schemes is weather dependent; should it prove not possible to carry out
these works on the planned dates, new dates will be arranged and the residents will be informed

by a letter drop to their homes.

Machine Resurfacing — Contact Officer Byron Lovell

Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status
Park Road Sittingbourne Roundabout and Programmed for
approaches, junction March/April 2016
with Albany Road
Dawes Road Dunkirk Repair of the collapsed Completed

section

Footway Improvement - Contact Officer Neil Tree

Road Name

Parish

Extent and Description
of Works

Current Status

Church Road

Eastchurch

From its junction with
Rowetts Way in
southerly direction past
Parsonage Farm
entrance, including the
section enclosed by
hedgerow.
(Replacement of tarmac
surface and kerbing
where required).

Completed

Shurland Avenue

Sittingbourne

Entire Length
(Footway protection

Works deferred until
next financial year
due to proposed Gas

treatment). mains replacement
works
Surface Treatments - Contact Officer Mr Clive Lambourne
Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status
None

Page 117




Appendix B — Drainage Repairs & Improvements

Location

Description of Works

Job Status

Timescale for

Completion
NONE over £5,000
Appendix C — Street Lighting
Following Structural testing, this year’s column replacement budget will be used to replace
columns deemed high risk.
Street Lighting Column Replacement — Contact Officer Sue Kinsella
Road Name Parish Description of Works Status
Dover Street Sittingbourne Replacement qf 1 no street light COMPLETED
complete with LED Lantern
High Street Sheerness Replacement qf 7 no street lights COMPLETED
complete with LED Lanterns
St Helens Road Sheerness Replacement of 10 no street lights COMPLETED
complete with LED Lanterns
Alma Road Sheerness Replacement of 10 no street lights COMPLETED
complete with LED Lanterns
Richmond Street Sheerness Replacement qf 7 no street lights COMPLETED
complete with LED Lanterns
Admirals Walk | Minster-On-sea | ePiacement of 13 nostreet lights COMPLETED
complete with LED Lanterns
Broadway Sheerness Replacement 9f 1 no street light COMPLETED
complete with LED Lanterns
Chapel Street | Minster-On-sea | eplacementof 3 no street lights COMPLETED
complete with LED Lanterns
Preston Street Faversham Replacement qf 1 no street light COMPLETED
complete with LED Lantern
Rock Road Sittingbourne Replacement (?f 7 no street lights COMPLETED
complete with LED Lanterns
Almond Tree Close Sheerness Replacement (?f 2 no street lights COMPLETED
complete with LED Lanterns
Replacement of 2 no street lights
complete with LED Lanterns.
Seaside Avenue Minster-On-Sea COMPLETED

Replacement of 1 no sign post
complete with LED Downflood

Page 118




Replacement of 1 no sign post

H A Minster-On-S COMPLETED
arps Avenue inster-bn-sea complete with LED Downflood.
The Leas Minster-On-Sea Replacement of 2 no sign posts COMPLETED
complete with LED Downflood.
Ridham Avenue | Sittingbourne Replacement of 1 no street light COMPLETED
complete with LED Lantern
Bruges Court Sittingbourne Replacement (.Jf 2 no street lights COMPLETED
complete with LED Lanterns.
Britannia Close Sittingbourne Replacement (.)f 1 no street light COMPLETED
complete with LED Lantern.
Austin Close Sittingbourne Replacement (.)f 1 no street light COMPLETED
complete with LED Lantern.
Fox Hill Bapchild Replacement of 1 no street light COMPLETED
complete with LED Lantern.
Works are currently being
Replacement of 1 no street light programmed and due for
Bank Street F h
ankotree aversham complete with LED Lantern completion by end of March
2016.
Works are currently being
. Replacement of 2 no street lights programmed and due for
Ridh A K I . .
idham Avenue emsiey complete with LED Lanterns completion by end of March
2016.
Works are currently being
Replacement of 1 no street light programmed and due for
F ICl Teynh j .
rognal tlose eynham complete with LED Lantern completion by end of March
2016.
Traffic Management issue which
, Replacement of 9 no street lights requires further investigation.
London Road Newington .
complete with LED Lanterns Programmed for completion by
end of March 2016
1 Column Completed
Remaining 3 columns have had to
Curtis Wa Faversham Replacement of 4 no street lights b‘_e pas.sed t? QKPN due to
y complete with LED Lanterns engineering difficulties. Works
have been programmed for
completion by end of February
2016.
12 Columns completed
Repl fi ligh Remaining 3 columns need to be
Winstanley Road Sheerness eplacement of 15 no street lights &

complete with LED Lanterns

done under another road closure,
works were attempted under
original road closure on 11t

Page 119




January but due to parked cars
were unable to be done.

Road closure currently being re-
programmed for completion by
the end of April 2016.

8 Columns completed

Remaining job has had to be
passed to UKPN due to

Replacement of 9 no street lights engineering difficulties.

Granville Road Sheerness .
complete with LED Lanterns The job is currently being
programmed & due for
completion by end of March
2016.

6 Columns completed

Remaining job has had to be
Replacement of 7 no street lights pas§ed t(.) UKI?N. due. to
engineering difficulties.

B -
urley Road Sittingbourne complete with LED Lanterns
The job is currently being

programmed for completion by
end of March 2016.

This job was attended to on the
11t November under a road
closure but due to engineering
difficulties works were
abandoned.
Replacement of 1 no street light

Milton Road Sittingbourne complete with LED Lantern This job has now had to be

passed to UKPN and is currently
being programmed with another
road closure and works due to be
completed by the end of March

2016.

Programmed for completion by

Replacement of 1 no street light
end of March 2016

Berridge Road Sh
erriage Roa eerness complete with LED Lantern

4 Columns Completed

' The remaining 2 jobs have had to
Ufton Lane Sittingbourne Replacement qf 6 no street lights be passed to UKPN and is

complete with LED Lanterns currently being programmed for

completion by the end of March

2016

This job has had to be passed to
UKPN due to engineering
difficulties. The work is currently
being programmed and due for
completion by the end March
2016.

it Repl tof1 treet light
Borden Lane Sittingbourne eplacement of 1 no street lig
complete with LED Lantern.

Page 120



Appendix D — Traffic Systems

There is a programme of scheduled maintenance to refurbish life expired traffic signal equipment across
the county based upon age and fault history. The delivery of these schemes is dependent upon school
terms and holiday periods; local residents, businesses and schools will be informed verbally and by a
letter drop of the exact dates when known.

Traffic Systems - Contact Officer: Toby Butler

Location Description of Works Current Status

No schemes planned

Page 121




Appendix E — Developer Funded Works

Developer Funded Works (Section 278 Works)

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status
Certificate 1 issued now in
Provision of New maintenance period- Works
Junction /Access for to be carried out again on
School Lane lwade Iwade Housing Development | Kerblines
Provision of
Land at Chequers Hill Footway./Junction for | Design Approved Letter of
Doddington Doddington Housing Development | Agreement Signed
Ospringe Cof E School Provision of Revised Letter of Agreement Signed -
Water Lane Faversham | Ospringe Vehicle Access Works Underway

Mill Way, Sittingbourne

Sittingbourne

New traffic signals
associated with new
supermarket

As Built Drawings Received

Stickfast Lane lwade

Iwade/Bobbing

Provision of Passing
places and new access
for Brick Clay
extraction Orchard
Farm

Design Approved Works to
commence 25.01.16 under
Temporary Road Closure

New School access
Traffic calming
changes and footway

Tunstall Road Tunstall Tunstall Connection Works mostly completed .
Upgrading junction /

Gas Road Off Mill Way Access to Milton Pipes | Awaiting Full Design

Sittingbourne Milton Ltd Submission

Barton Hill Drive/Lower Minor Junction

Road & Barton Hill realignment and Redesign of works to be

Drive/Plover Road Traffic Signal carried out at junction — See

Minster Sheppey Minster Upgrading Minute No. 218/09/14
Provision of New
Junction/Access for

Sheppey Way Iwade Iwade Housing Development | Works Underway

Thomsett Way

Queenborough -

Morrisons Store - PFS Drainage diversion

Junction Queenborough within Highway verge Design of works agreed

Asda Store Mill Way
Sittingbourne

Sittingbourne

Provision of Signalised
Junction to
Store/Petrol Filling
station

As Built Plans Received End
of Maintenance Period
Works to be Carried out

Rushenden Road
Queenborough

Queenborough

Replacement of
Footway on frontage
to HA Development

Footway remedial resurfacing
works to be carried out

Page 122




Wyllie Court

Milton

Reconstruction of
existing Turning area
for Housing
development

Works Complete Certificate 1
to be issued (street lighting
problem)

109-111 Staplehurst
Road Sittingbourne

Sittingbourne

Provision of revised
traffic calming and
vehicle access for
Housing
developments

Technical vetting of design
underway

Attlee Way/Wyvern
Close Sittingbourne

Milton

Provision of revised
traffic calming and
vehicle access for
Housing
developments

Design Approved S278
Agreement being prepared

Dover Street
Sittingbourne

Sittingbourne

Revision of Vehicle
Access to Lidl Store
and footway revisions

Works complete awaiting
Safety Audit

Thistle Hill Way Minster

Provision of new
Primary School Exit

Letter of Agreement signed

Sheppey Minster and Footpath Works underway
Provision of new

Seager Road Marine junction /access for Stage 3 Road Safety Audit

Parade Sheerness Sheerness housing development | Carried out — Awaiting Report
Provision of new Section 278 Letter of
footway for housing Agreement signed Works

Lower Road Teynham Teynham development underway

Grove Ave/The

Promenade Leysdown Revision of Surface Certificate 1 Issued - in

on Sea Leysdown Water Drainage Maintenance Period

West Street

Sittingbourne

Provision of HGV
Delivery Vehicle Lay-
By for Restaurant

Completion works still
required

Otterham Quay Lane

Provision of Right Turn
Lane / Junction and
Footway for Housing

Technical Vetting of Design

Upchurch Upchurch Develoment Submission
Provision of footway
Larkrise Conyer Road to Small Housing Technical Vetting of Design
Conyer Teynham Development Submission
Provision of Access
into Proposed Public Design Approved Letter of
Selling Road Faversham | Faversham House/Restaurant Agreement Signed
Provision of Revised
Wyvern Close Footway and Access to | Letter of Agreement Signed —
Sittingbourne Milton Housing Development | Works Underway
Old Water Works Site Provision of Revised
Rook Lane Keycol Footway and Access to | Technical Vetting of Design
Bobbing Bobbing Housing Development | Submission

Page 123




Appendix F — Transportation, PROW and safety schemes

Appendix F — Transportation and Safety schemes

The Traffic Schemes Team is implementing a number of schemes within the Swale District,
in order to meet Kent County Council’s strategic targets (for example, addressing traffic
congestion, or improving road safety). Contact Officer — Andy Corcoran

CASUALTY REDUCTION MEASURES
Identified to address a known history of personal injury crashes

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status

Works complete.

Pedestrian safet
y Amendments have been

High Street Sittingbourne

scheme
requested
Scheme ordered and due to
commence 11t Jan for 5-6
weeks. This will involve up to 3
A2 London Road )
L . weeks working on the A2
/ Chalkwell Sittingbourne | Junction improvement

Road under two way lights. TM is
oa
shared with the gas works
which is currently underway to

minimise disruption.

A2 Canterbur
y Traffic signal

Rd / Swanstree Sittingbourne . Scheme complete
modifications

Avenue
A2 St Michaels Traffic island re-
Road / Crown Sittingbourne | location and yellow box | Scheme complete
Quay Lane markings
B2005 Swale
Way / Lloyd Sittingbourne | Junction improvement | Scheme complete
Drive
A2 Hartlip Hill / Signing, lining and i

) ) ) Signage works ordered. New
Lower Hartlip Lower Hartlip | resurfacing . i

. completion date mid Feb.

Rd improvements

Castle Road /

) Sittingbourne | Signing improvements | Works complete
Dolphin Road

Page 124



INTEGRATED TRANSPORT SCHEMES

Local Transport Plan funded non-casualty reduction schemes

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status
Please see separate report
A2 / A251 Junction improvement, | entitled ‘A2 / A251 Junction
) ) Faversham )
junction to ease congestion Improvement update February

2016’

Highsted Road
(Farm Crescent
to Swanstree
Avenue)

Sittingbourne

New footway

Scheme has been dropped due
to private land issues.

Eastchurch
Primary School

Leysdown-on-
Sea

School safety zone.
Provision of part time
20mph zone

All signs installed except one
variable message sign. New
post installed and awaiting
installation date of sign to
complete the scheme.

Bobbing Village
School

Bobbing

School safety zone.
Provision of part time
20mph zone

Traffic order to be advertised
by end of February

A2 Canterbury
Rd (ad;.
Murston Rd)

Sittingbourne

Pedestrian crossing
island

Initial investigation work
delayed due to staff resource
being allocated to other
priority schemes. Likely
implementation in 2016/17

A2 East St / St
Michaels Rd

Sittingbourne

Pedestrian crossing
island

Initial investigation work
suggests site not suitable. No
further proposals at present

A2500 Lower Rd

Cycle crossing

Dropped due to financial

Minster . . o
(Sheppey R.C.) improvement implications.
A2500 Lower Rd Speed limit
Eastchurch Works complete

/ Rowetts Way amendments

Initial investigation work
. delayed due to staff resource

Marine Town )

area Sheerness Drop kerbs being allocated to other
priority schemes. Likely
implementation in 2016/17
Initial investigation work

The Brents area Faversham Drop kerbs delayed due to staff resource

being allocated to other

Page 125




priority schemes. Likely
implementation in 2016/17

The Wall/Milton
Road

Sittingbourne

Awaiting costs from UKPN to

Carriageway widening

divert existing services.
Planned construction of
scheme expected to

commence in May 2016

LOCAL GROWTH FUND

Central Government funded schemes to support economic development

Road Name

Parish

Description of Works

Current Status

Howard Ave to
Laburnham
Place

Sittingbourne

New cycle route

Works complete

National Cycle
Route 1

Sittingbourne

Cycle route signing
improvements. Full
extent not know at
present

Works ordered. Estimated
completion by end of March

Appendix G — Public Rights Of Way

Contact Officer Andrew Hutchinson
No work currently being carried out

Appendix H — Bridge Works

Bridge Works — Contact Officer Katie Moreton

Road Name

Parish

Description of Works

No Planned works

Page 126

Current Status




Appendix | - Member Highway Fund programme update for the Swale District.

Combined Member Grant programme update for Swale

The following schemes are those which have been approved for funding by both the relevant
Member and by Roger Wilkins, Director of Highways, Transportation and Waste. The list only
includes schemes, which are

° in design

. at consultation stage

° Handed over for delivery

. Recently completed on site.

The list is up to date as of 15" February 2016.

The details given below are for highway projects only. This report does not detail
. Contributions Members have made to other groups such as parish councils

° Highway studies
. Traffic/ non-motorised user surveys funded by Members.

More information on the schemes listed below can be found via Kent Gateway, the online
database for all Combined Member Grant schemes and studies, or by contacting the Schemes
Project Manager/ Engineer for the Swale District.

2014/15/16 Combined Member Grant Highway Schemes

Roger Truelove

Details of Scheme Status

15-MHF-SW-31 The Street, lwade
Handed over for delivery
Install illuminated GIVE WAY sign

14-MHF-SW-63 Volante Drive, Sittingbourne

Complete
Install motorbike inhibitors
14-MHF-SW-64 Volante Drive, Sittingbourne
Install advanced junction warning sign works complete on site awaiting

completion certificate

Mike Baldock

Details of Scheme Status

15-MHF-SW-23 Oad Street, Borden complete

Lining improvements

Page 127



Combined Members Grants — Joint Transportation Board updates 2016

A review of the delivery of highway projects using County Members’ discretionary
Combined Members Grant has been undertaken. As a result of this review the scheme
will be revised from 15t May 2016.

The key changes are intended to create key contacts for County Members through the
District Managers who will support County Members in identifying highway projects
working on an annual programme of works which will allow resources to be effectively
planned to deliver projects on the ground.

District Managers will also be responsible for reporting through Joint Transportation
Boards on Combined Member Grant scheme.

County Members will be fully briefed on the changes in April.

11 Legal Implications

1.1.1 Not applicable.

1.2 Financial and Value for Money Considerations
1.2.1 Not applicable.

1.3 Risk Assessment

1.3.1 Not applicable

Contact: Kirstie Williams / Alan Blackburn 03000 418181

Page 128



SBC - Swale Borough Council

KCC - Kent County Council Highway Services

Updates are in italics

Updated 19 February 2016

SWALE JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD (JTB)

Minute Subject SBC/ Recommendations Made by Board KCC - SBC -
No KCC Comments/date due back to | Comments/date due back to
JTB JTB
730/03/11 | Highway works | KCC | Mill Way, Sittingbourne Asda site — signalising As Built Drawings
programme 2010/2011 junction. Design check complete - awaiting Received and Approved.
Developer to progress S278 Agreement Final site remedial works
requested to be carried
out.
Sittingbourne Retail Park site Widening of approach road
from Sittingbourne Retail
Park to the new traffic
signal junction is still being
;JU pursued. Additional
o unrecorded statutory
D undertakers plant identified
= in works area prior to
B construction. Currently
liaising with UKPN for
service diversions. Scheme
construction put on hold
until completion of
diversionary works. Likely N
scheme construction date -
April/May 2016. (§
590/03/12 | Highways at the | KCC | That the 30mph boundary be moved, and that | Road markings and red -
junction of Warden costs associated with moving the 30mph | patches completed. ¢
Bay Road and B2231 boundary and associated signing be met by KCC | Standard signs installed. ¢
Leysdown Road Councillor Mr Adrian Crowther's Member Highway | VMS and Flashing school -
Fund. warning signs are installed, F
Subsequent related | KCC | (1) That a letter be sent to KCC Highways to | one post to amend for VMS M
Minute No. 67/06/13 — include the points made by the Ward Member | sign .
regarding the crossing, risk assessments and the
Eastchurch Primary re-location of the 30mph zone and a more K

1 sl epusoy




Minute Subject SBC/ Recommendations Made by Board KCC - SBC -
No KCC Comments/date due back to | Comments/date due back to
JTB JTB
School pedestrian detailed report be submitted to a future JTB
crossing petition meeting.
235/09/13 | A2 | A251 Junction, | KCC | (1) That both proposed traffic improvements | Detailed design work is
Faversham (Annex 1 and 2 in the report), the inclusion of | being undertaken by
consideration of the junction of The Mall and the | Amey Consultants. It is
A2, plus the option of ‘no change’, be approved | anticipated that the
for the purposes of a wider public consultation | designs will be completed
and the results of the consultation brought back to | in February 2016. Land
the JTB at a later date. acquisition negotiations
Subsequent related KCC | 1) That Option B (roundabout) be progressed as | are in progress with the
Minute No. 72/06/14 the preferred option for the A2/A251 junction, | Fire Station and the
A2/A251 Junction, Faversham. Abbey School. Pending
;DU Faversham Highway approval of detailed
(o) Improvement Scheme design, land acquisition
® and funding being
= available, implementation
8 is planned to commence
in 2016/17.
70/06/14 Proposed Relocation | SBC (1) That the preferred option for the relocation of Traffic Regulation Order
of Sittingbourne Sittingbourne market at the top of the High Street has been advertised, and
Market be noted and that consideration be given to a formal objections
phased approach to the project with the Saturday received are included in
market to be progressed first, and the Friday report to March 2016 JTB.
market to be addressed separately to facilitate
quicker progress.
(2) That Officers proceed to the stage of drafting
a Traffic  Regulation Order and the
procurement of services to support this work and
preparation for formal consultation.
218/09/14 | Lower Road Junction | KCC (1) That the preferred option for the Lower | Initial design work is

with Barton Hill Drive,
Isle of Sheppey

Road junction with the Barton Hill Drive junction
be a small roundabout, rather than a mini-
roundabout.

currently being undertaken
on a roundabout scheme,
and discussions are
ongoing with landowners
and developers to help




Minute
No

Subject

SBC/
KCC

Recommendations Made by Board

KCC -
Comments/date due back to
JTB

SBC -
Comments/date due back to
JTB

TET abed

secure the delivery of it.

Whilst the S278 Agreement
for previously agreed
highway works to the
junction has expired, the
agreement is only a
mechanism used to allow a
developer to carry out
works on the public
highway. Their standard
duration is 12 months, after
which they must reapply.
Expiry does not remove the
obligation for the developer
to undertake the works.
However, in this instance, it
has been agreed with the
developer that the funds
they were to use for those
works can instead be
diverted towards delivering
the roundabout.

195/09/15

Proposed Waiting
Restrictions, The
Street, Boughton-
under-Blean

SBC

(1)

(2)

That double yellow lines across the Gas
Lane entrance, off The Street, Boughton-
under-Blean be included in the next Traffic
Regulation Order.

That the proposed double yellow lines
between 179 and 191 The Street, Boughton-
under-Blean be abandoned.

Traffic Regulation Order
has now been advertised,
and formal objections will
be reported to JTB in
March 2016.

197/09/15

Informal Consultation
on waiting
restrictions

SBC

(1)

(2)

That a single yellow line on the east side of
Grayshott Close, Sittingbourne be
proceeded, with restrictions between 8am
and 5pm, Monday to Friday.

That the existing double yellow lines in

Traffic Regulation Order
has now been advertised,
and formal objections will
be reported to JTB in
March 2016.




Minute Subject SBC/ Recommendations Made by Board KCC - SBC -
No KCC Comments/date due back to | Comments/date due back to
JTB JTB
Grayshott Close, Sittingbourne near the
junction with Highsted Road be extended
from five metres to 10 metres in length.
(3) That double yellow lines around the turning
head at the end of Grayshott Close,
Sittingbourne be installed.
198/09/15 | Swale Rail Line | KCC | (1) That Swale be encouraged to consider | 1) Mike Baldock, Councillor
between funding the Kent Community Rail Partnership | for Borden and Grove Park,
Sittingbourne and £4,000 per year towards promoting events in | reported at the SwaleRail
Sheerness-on-Sea Swale. Line Meeting on the 10th
(2) That the Kent Community Rail Partnership | February 2016 that Swale
consider extending their remit to Swale’s | Borough Council was
;DU lesser used stations, including Teynham, | hoping to make a
Q Newington and Selling. contribution of £4,000 to the
D Kent CRP, and that this
= would be confirmed once
& the details of the 2016-17
budget had been examined.
(2) Kent CRP agreed to
extend their support of local
community initiatives at
Teynham, Newington and
Selling in respect of station
environments.
376/12/15 | Parking Issues in|SBC | (1) That the bylaw restricting parking on grass At the request of
Swale verges be extended to include parking on Cabinet, more detailed
footways. report to be submitted
to March 2016 for
further consideration.
382/12/15 | Quiet Lane — | KCC (1) That a Quiet Lane scheme be implemented
Munsgore Lane, in Munsgore Lane and progressed by the
Borden Borough Council and local residents.
383/12/15 | Pedestrian Crossing | KCC (1) A feasibility study to be carried out into




Minute Subject SBC/ Recommendations Made by Board KCC - SBC -
No KCC Comments/date due back to | Comments/date due back to
JTB JTB

at South Avenue
School, Sittingbourne

highway improvements at the site.

(2) A report on the conclusions of the feasibility
study to be presented to a future JTB.

(3) The cost of funding for the feasibility study to
come from a Member’s grant.

ceT abed




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 15

From the Parliamentary
Under Secretary of State

v B

Department Andrew Jones MP
for Transport Soileatlons

London
SW1P 4DR

Councillor Andrew Bowles T —

s . el:
Cabinet Member for Localism, Sport, E-Mail: andrew.jones@dft.gsi.gov.uk
Culture and Heritage

; Web site: www.gov.uk/dft
Swale Borough Council ?

Swale House, East Street Our Ref: MC/154885
Sittingbourne, Kent
ME10 3HT

{2 FEB 2016

b—ew C@M/\.o:u&f %@A(lai

Thank you for your letter of 28 January (and your colleague Mike
Whiting's letters of 26 January to Patrick McLoughlin and myself)
regarding the closure of the A249, Sittingbourne, Kent. | trust you will be
content for me to address both letters together, given that the contents
have much in common.

Firstly, | want to stress that | appreciate the concerns that you,
businesses and the local community have had about the recent problems
experienced with the A249, and sympathise deeply with drivers frustrated
by the delays.

The problems with the A249 were complex, and meant that a number of
issues had to be resolved before the permanent works could be carried
out and the road made safe for traffic to use. A significant volume of
water had escaped from the burst water main over a long period. This
resulted in considerable damage to the ground beneath the A249 and
therefore it was not possible to carry out a ground investigation to
determine the extent of the damage until the replacement temporary
water main was in place.

Page 135




To determine whether the carriageway was safe to use, Highways
‘England’s specialist contractors completed an initial pavement survey
during the night of Friday 16 January. To ensure lane 2 was safe to
open, a second survey was then carried out on Monday 25 January
(after the temporary water main had been installed), to determine the
stability of the ground underneath.

Agreement was then reached at an on-site meeting on Monday 25
January to pump foamed concrete into the void beneath the A249, with
the aim of reopening lane 2 of the A249 as soon as was safely possible.
A total of 80 cubic metres of foamed concrete was pumped during night
works in that week (enough to fill a double decker bus), and lane 2
northbound was opened to traffic at midnight on Thursday 28 January.
In order to minimize the impact of installing traffic management
measures to allow traffic to run in lane 2 of the northbound carriageway,
this work was also undertaken at night. Following further surface works,
the full A249 main carriageway was opened on the morning of 5
February and the slip road was opened on the same evening.

With regard to traffic management in the early stages of the works,
Highways England looked at three possible options; a contra-flow on the
southbound carriageway; instaltation of temporary traffic signals at the
A249/A2 Key Street, and the re-opening of lane 2 of the northbound
carriageway to traffic.

The contraflow was not considered to be a viable option due to the road
layout and local traffic patterns. There are no existing crossovers in the
A249 central reservation to allow northbound traffic to cross over onto the
southbound carriageway and then back again after the incident site. The
existing wire rope central reservation safety barrier has to be highly
tensioned to operate effectively, and creating new gaps within it to
facilitate crossovers would require extensive works. As you have noted,
morning southbound peak hour traffic flows regularly result in heavy
congestion in both southbound lanes between Bobbing and the M2
Stockbury Junction, which would be severely exacerbated by the
introduction of a contraflow.

Unfortunately, temporary traffic signals would not have been suitable, as
they were unlikely to operate efficiently, causing further disruption and
congestion.

Page 136




Allowing a single lane of traffic to run in lane 2 of the northbound
carriageway, under a temporary speed restriction of 50mph, was decided
to be the only safe and viable option. The sequence of events outlined
above was necessary to ensure the safety of road users and workers.

Once | heard of severity of the situation | asked Highways England to
provide daily updates of their progress to both the constituency MP,
Gordon Henderson, and myself. Following this incident, | have also
asked Highways England to review the work that was undertaken so
they can take away the lessons learned.

Should you have any further concerns or questions on the work to
recover the A249, please do not hesitate to contact Highways England’s
Project Manager Tim Lyver, by e-mail at
Tim.Lyver@highwaysengland.co.uk or by telephone on 0300 470 1172.

YOWS %ivxwe%j,
F B

ANDREW JONES

Page 137




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	6 Verge and Footway Parking in Swale
	7 Formal Objections - Traffic Regulation Order for Proposed Sittingbourne Market Re-location
	Annex A
	Annex B

	8 Formal Objections - Traffic Regulation Order Amendment 17 (Grayshott Close, Sittingbourne and Church Road, Eastchurch)
	Annex A
	Annex B

	9 Fairview Road Area, Sittingbourne - Parking Review
	Fairview - Annex A
	Fairview - Annex B
	Fairview - Annex C
	Fairview - Annex D

	10 Information Consultations on Proposed Waiting Restrictions
	Annex A
	Annex B

	12 Lower Road, Isle of Sheppey, petition
	13 Swale Highway Works Programme
	14 Progress Update Report
	15 Department for Transport response to the closure of the A249

